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VISION

To establish and steer the Company towards development of the Project
Highway, the Bikaner- Phalodi Section on NH-15, in the State of
Rajasthan and ensuring the users of the project highway are benefitted
thereof and achieving higher revenues from the constructed toll plazas
and making the Company stand at par in delivering the expected project
output within the optimum time period.

MISSION

I. Constructing through site planning, scheduling of project activities,
leveling and laying the land, installing systems for measuring
quality of construction.

Il. Responsibly monitoring the implementation and operationalization
of the project.

lll. Ensuring increased usage of highway over the tenure of
concession by keeping a check on toll rates, enabling plying of
more and more cars and commercial vehicles on the road, revising
the toll rates based on effective traffic sampling.

IV. Curtailing costs and channeling resources into required areas.
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CHAIRMAN'’S ADDRESS

Dear Shareholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to present you the Sixth (Gth) Annual General
Report of Ircon PB Tollway Limited (IrconPBTL). The annual report, including the
Ind AS Audited Financial Statements, Boards report, Auditor’s report and the
Non-Review Certificate (NRC) by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
(‘CAG’), for the financial year ended 31°* March, 2020 has been circulated to you.

About the Company

| would like to highlight to the esteemed members of this Company, that your
Company entrusted with the execution of Bikaner-Phalodi Toll Road Projectfor
four laning from km 4.200 to km 55.250 & two laning with paved shoulder from
Km 55.250 to Km 163.500 of NH-15 on Build, Operate &Transfer (BOT) (Toll) basis
in the State of Rajasthan, has commenced its Commercial Tolling Operations
from February 2019.

The execution phase of the project has already been completed and the project
has now entered into Operation and Maintenance (O & M) Phase
viz.Commercial Tolling Operations from the date of Provisional
CommercialOperations Date(‘Provisional COD’).The project has started
generating revenue from the three operational toll plazas located at Salasar,
Nokhra and Kheerwa in the form of toll income.




Financial Performance

Your Company has for the financial year ended 31* March 2020 has
recognizedrevenue from operationsviz. operating turnover ofRs.70.41 Cr. in
terms of IndAS115 “Revenue from Contract with Customers”including
Construction Contract Revenue under Service Concession Arrangement (SCA) in
its statement of profit and loss.

The Company has incurred a Net Loss before tax of Rs.17.17 Cr.and Net Loss after
tax of Rs.17.18 Cr. for the financial year ended 31* March 2020- due to project
and other expenditure booked on account of works contract expenses incurred
for the financial year ended 31° March 2020.

Compliances and Disclosures

Compliances and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and its associated
rules thereunder are fully being adhered to. Further, being incorporated as
Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) of Ircon International Limited (i.e. Holding
Company), the Company is exempted from complying with the Guidelines on
Corporate Governance, issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE).

Acknowledgement

| render sincere thanks and gratitude to the Holding Company, Ircon
International Limited, Board Members, Auditors of the Company and the valued
client of the Company i.e. NHAI for continuous support and cooperation
extended to the Company and lending the financial and administrative support.
| am also thankful for the whole-hearted support of the Banks, Comptroller &
Auditor General of India(C&AG), Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and
Secretarial Auditors. |, also sincerely place my appreciation for the good work
done by all the employees at all levels of the Company.

Best Regards,

For and on behalf of
Ircon PB Tollway Limited

Sd/-

(Shyam Lal Gupta)
Chairman

DIN: 07598920

Date: 26.08.2020
Place: New Delhi
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BOARD GREPORT

To the Members,
Ircon PB Tollway Limited

The Board of Directors of your Company take pleasure in presenting their Sixth (6'") Annual
Report on the business and operations of the Company and the Audited Financial
Statements for the Financial Year ended 315t March 2020.

A. BUSINESS OVERVIEW: PRESENT STATE OF AFFAIRS

Your Company, was incorporated on 30" September 2014 as a Wholly-owned
Subsidiary (‘WOS’) by Ircon International Limited (‘IRCON’) for executing the project
of “Widening and Strengthening of the existing Bikaner & Phalodi Section to Four lane
from km 4.200 to km 55.250 and Two Lane with paved shoulder from Km 55.250 to
Km 163.500 of NH-15 on Build, Operate, and Transfer (BOT) (Toll) basis in the State
of Rajasthan, in accordance with the terms of the concession agreement signed with
NHAI” as its main business object.

The Total Project Cost (TPC) which has been approved for Bikaner-Phalodi
Project Execution is for the value of '844Crores, divided into:

1. Equity Share Capital: Rs.165 Crores
2. Debt Capital (Secured Loan): Rs.352 Crores and
3. NHAI Grant (Cash Support): Rs.327 Crores

As on 315t March 2020, the Authorized Equity Share Capital of the Company stands
at Rs.175 Crores and the Paid-up Equity Share Capital stands at Rs.165 Crores. The
Debt Capital (Long Term Borrowings) stands at the value of Rs.417.22 Crores.

The Bikaner-Phalodi Project Construction works have been completed.

Project Commissioning
(Commencement of Commercial Tolling Operations)

The project has now entered into Operation and Maintenance (O & M) Phase viz.
Commercial Tolling Operations from the date of Provisional Commercial Operations
Date (‘Provisional COD’) and has started earning toll income.

The said Provisional COD has been issued on 15" February 2019 for commencement
of commercial tolling operations at the three toll plazas located at Salasar and Nokhra
in Bikaner District and Kheerwa, in Jodhpur District, Rajasthan and accordingly, the
revenue or toll collection is in progress at the three toll plazas.

Toll Revenue
On account of Commissioning of Project, the project has started earning income from

toll operations (‘toll income’), from all the three toll plazas. The revenue collection is
in progress from the following dates:



Toll/Corridor Name Date of Toll Revenue Started
1. Salasar (TP —-1) 20.02.2019
2. Nokhra (TP - 2) 22.02.2019
3. Kheerwa (TP — 3) 24.02.2019

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

As per the Ind AS Audited Financial Statements of your Company for the financial
year ended 315t March 2020:

Paid-up Equity Share Capital remains the same for financial year ended 315t March
2020 at the value of Rs.165 Crores.

Total Borrowings (Secured Loan) of Company stand increased to the value of
Rs.417.22 Crores as compared to previous year figure of 337.85 Crores. Further, the
Company has recognized long-term borrowings (Non-Current Financial Liabilities) to
the extent of Rs.379.29 Crores and short-term borrowings (Current Financial
Liabilities) to the extent of Rs.37.93 Crores (classified on account of current maturities
— repayable in next financial year).

Your Company has incurred an interest expense of Rs.19.93 Crores for the financial
year 2019-20 vis-a-vis an interest expense of Rs.25.22 Crores incurred for the
financial year 2018-19 as finance / borrowing cost.

. During the financial year 2019-20, your Company has recognized turnover (Revenue

from Operations) of Rs.70.41 Crores, for the period ended 315t March 2020 including
Construction Contract Revenue under Service Concession Arrangement (SCA),
Revenue from Toll Operations and Other Operating Revenue, in terms of Ind AS 115
“Revenue from Contract with Customers”. The Company has measured
contract revenue at the fair value of the consideration receivable viz. Revenue
from Construction Services.

Intangible Assets have been recognized at cost as the fair value of the service
provided plus other direct costs directly attributable to the operation of the value of
Rs.494.96 Crores and intangible assets under development have been recognized to
the extent of Rs.16.94 Crores.

Company has made a Net Loss before tax of Rs.17.17 Crores and Net Loss after tax
of Rs.17.18 Crores for the financial year ended 315t March 2020 - due to project and
other expenditure booked on account of works contract expenses incurred for the
financial year ended 31 March 2020.



SUMMARISED FINANCIAL POSITION AS ON MARCH 31, 2020

(Rs. in Crores)

Standalone
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
(Audited)

Profit & Loss Position Amount in Rs.
Revenue from Operations 70.41 356.07
Other Income 0.33 0.82
Total Income 70.74 356.89
Total Expenses 87.91 359.71
Net profit (loss) before tax (17.17) (2.82)
Net profit (loss) after tax (17.18) (2.11)
Total Comprehensive Income (17.18) (2.11)
Equity & Debt Position
Equity Share Capital 165.00 165.00
Other Equity (15.37) 1.81
Loan frqm Holding Company 417.92 337.85
(Borrowings)
Earnings Per Share (For Continuing
Operation)
(Face Value of Rs 10/- each)
(a) Basic (in Rs.) (1.04) (0.13)

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

IrconPBTL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (‘IRCON’), and
thereby its entire equity shareholding is held by its promoter company, IRCON, a
Government of India Undertaking, under Ministry of Railways.

Presently, the Company is having paid-up equity share capital of Rs.165 Crores out
of the authorized share capital of Rs.175 Crores, as previously indicated in the Capital
Structure of Company, and 100% equity is held in the name of IRCON and its 8
nominee shareholders, as depicted below.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management Discussion & Analysis Report has been annexed to the Board’s
Report as ANNEXURE —I.

DIRECTOR’S & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Pursuant to Article 49 of the Articles of Association (AOA) of the Company, the power
to appoint directors in your Company is with the holding company, Ircon International
Limited.

As on 315t March 2020, in terms thereof, the holding company has till date, nominated
four Non-executive Nominee directors as Board of Directors of IrconPBTL:

Sl. No. | Directors ‘ Date of Appointment DIN




1. Shri Shyam Lal Gupta 18t November 2019 07598920
Part-Time Chairman

2. Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal 30" September 2014 05308809
Part-Time Director
3. Shri Rajendra Singh Yadav 3 March 2017 07752915

Part-Time Director

4, Ms. Bhuvaneshwari Krishnan| 19" September 2019 07486148
Part-Time Director

DIRECTORS CEASED TO HOLD OFFICE DURING THE YEAR 2019-20

(i) Ms. Anupam Ban, Part-Time (Director) upto 30" August 2019
(i) Shri Anand Kumar Singh, Part-Time (Director) upto 4™ September 2019
(iii) Shri Deepak Sabhlok, Part-Time (Chairman) upto 315t October 2019

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (KMP)

Pursuant to Sec 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has three
designated Key Management Personnel (KMP) viz. Chief Executive Officer (CEO),
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Company Secretary (CS), as follows:

KMP who ceased to hold office during the year:
(i)  Shri Atul Kumar, CFO (upto 8" April 2019)

(i)  Shri M. K. Sharma, CEO, (from 8" April 2019 upto 315t May 2019)

(iii) Shri Sanjay Poddar, CFO, (upto 10" October 2019)

(iv) Shri Bhushan Kumar, CFO, (from 24" October 2019 upto 3™ February 2020)
(v) Ms. Shudodhani Sharma, Company Secretary, (upto 315t October 2019)

The KMP of the Company appointed during the FY2019-20 are Shri Atul Kumar, CEO
(re-appointed w.e.f. 31t May 2019), Shri Manjur Mohammad Gouri, CFO (from
18" March 2020 upto 11" August 2020) and Ms. Anuradha Kaushik, CS (from 31st
January 2020).

As on the date of this report, Ms. Meenakshi Garg has been appointed as the CFO of
the Company (from 11" August 2020).

. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILTY STATEMENT (DRS)
(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of Companies Act, 2013)

In accordance with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors of the Company hereby confirms:

(a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards 56 had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

(b) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent



so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end
of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

(d) that the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and
(e) that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

INTER-CORPORATE LOANS & INVESTMENTS (SEC 185 & SEC 186)

The Company has not made any inter-corporate loans and investments and as such
NIL transactions stand on date.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN - MGT -9

The extract of Annual Return as per Section 92(3) read with Rule 12(1) of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 has been annexed as ANNEXURE —
1.

. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (RPT’S) U/S 188 — CONTRACTS OR
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES IN FORM NO. AOC-2
The disclosure pertaining to the transactions entered by the Company with its related

parties in Form No.2 has been enclosed as ANNEXURE - lll.

DIVIDEND & RESERVES

Since the Company has entered into Commercial Tolling Operations from February
2019 only, the Board of Directors has not proposed any dividend for the financial year
2019-20.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not invited any deposits from its members pursuant to the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

STATUTORY AUDIT & COMMENTS OF COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL
OF INDIA

The Statutory Auditors appointed for the financial year 2019-20 were A.N. Garg &
Company, Chartered Accountants, having registered office at 309-310, Aggarwal
Millenium, Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, New Delhi -110034 There were
nil qualifications in the Statutory Audit Report on the company’s financial statements
dated 24" July 2020.

For the Financial Year 2019-20, C&AG had decided not to conduct the supplementary

audit of the financial statements of the Company for the period ended 315t March 2020
under section 143 (6) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013. In this reference, C&AG vide

10



its letter no. Acs.Audit-IPBTL/65-04/2020-21 dated 28.08.2020, has issued a Non-
Review Certificate (NRC) to the Company for the period 01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020.

MSME PROCUREMENT COMPLIANCE (FY 2019-20)

Your Company has during the financial year 2019-20 made procurement of
Rs.58,221/- from MSME Vendors against the annual procurement target of
Rs.50,000/-, in terms of compliance to Public Procurement Policy for MSE’s; fulfilling
the 20% procurement criteria of annual procurement target to be effected from MSE'’s.

. DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & AUDITOR’S

REPORT

The Financial Statements prepared for financial year ended 315t March 2020, reflect
a true and fair view of the accounts and have been prepared in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards and necessary measures have been adopted to
streamline the accounting processes.

Your Directors have closely evaluated the said Financial Statements alongwith the
Statutory Auditors Report including nil qualifications and noted the same.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION & CONSERVATION, CONSERVATION OF
ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS &
OUTGO

During the construction of the highway in the financial year 2019-20, appropriate and
adequate measures as stipulated by NHAI have been taken to ensure environment
protection and conservation. Varied environmental laws relating to Environment
Protection Act, Air and Water Pollution Control Acts, have been duly adhered to as
part of conditions to be fulfilled by the Company as Concessionaire.

Foreign earnings and outflows are not applicable for Company being solely
responsible for execution of BOT based project awarded by NHAI.

. COMPLIANCES WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has been in strict adherence to the Secretarial Standards issued by
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI)

SECRETARIAL AUDIT & DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS ON SECRETARIAL AUDIT
REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, Ms. Shweta Jindal, Partner of M/s S Jindal & Associates (holding Associate
Membership No. F10398 and Certificate of Practice (COP) No. 8879), Practising
Company Secretary, had been appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company
for the financial year 2019-20.
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The Secretarial Audit Report issued by the Secretarial Auditor for the financial year
2019-20 on compliance of applicable laws in the prescribed format MR-3 has been
annexed as ANNEXURE — IV.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & ITS ADEQUACY

Internal Financial Controls (IFC) in relation to Financial Statements pertain to proper
safeguard measures being undertaken in terms of adherence to policies and
procedures being adopted, asset provisioning and recording of expenses and
incomes (Financial Reporting).

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order,
2016 provides for Auditors to mention in their Auditor’'s Report about the adequacy of
internal financial controls existing in the Company commensuration with the size and
nature of business.

Pertaining to the aforementioned matter, the Company has internal financial controls
(IFC’s) in all its material aspects as required in terms of the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, as equivalently stated in the Auditors Report
issued for the financial year 2019-20. Further, all essential components of internal
financial control have been found to be adequate.

Also, the Board of Directors of the Company had at their 35" BoD meeting held on
29" July 2019, reviewed the Internal Financial Controls (IFC) operating over financial
reporting of the Company and noted that the Company has an adequate internal
financial control system over financial reporting.

COST ACCOUNTING RECORDS & COST AUDIT REPORT

Your Company has duly commenced the process of maintaining Cost Accounting
Records from the Financial Year 2019-20 and has appointed M/s Ravi Sahni & Co.
as Cost Auditing Firm for the Financial Year 2019-20. Cost Audit Report for the said
Financial Year has been issued by the Cost Auditing Firm.

This has been in due compliance to the provisions enumerated under Section 148 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014
and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 for turnover on account of Ind AS
Applicability having been recorded in the books of account of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In pursuance of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, and in compliance of Para 3.6 of Chapter 3 of the DPE
Corporate Governance Guidelines, 2010, ‘a statement indicating development and
implementation of a risk management policy for the company including identification
therein of elements of risk, if any’, is required to form part of Board’s Report.

Accordingly, since the Company is a CONCESSIONAIRE COMPANY, formed for

execution of the Bikaner - Phalodi Project, the Risk Elements pertaining to the project
have been identified as detailed below:
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(i)

(ii)

Risk Elements Relative to Project

Sr. No. | Risk Elements Description
1. Traffic — Related Revenue Revenue Potential from Commercial
Risk Traffic is high but subject to volatility in
economic cycles.

DISCLOSURE ON EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION

Pursuant to Sec 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, none of the employees of
the Company was in receipt of remuneration of more than Rs.60 Lakh per annum or
Rs.5,00,000/- per month.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Report on Corporate Governance has been annexed to this Report as
ANNEXURE - V. Further, the Certificate for Compliance with DPE Corporate
Governance Guidelines, 2010 issued by M/s S Jindal & Associates, Practising
Company Secretaries, is annexed as ANNEXURE — V’A.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION, & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Sexual harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 is applicable to every organisation having women employees.
In case, the total number of employees in the organisation exceeds 10, constitution
of ‘Internal Complaints Committee’ is required in terms of Section 4 of the said act.

In terms thereof, constitution of Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) under Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 was discussed at the 18" BoD meeting of IrconPBTL and it was decided to
undertake its constitution on articulation of specific terms of reference and the
modalities and procedure for its working.

GENERAL INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Key Policies & Regulations:

The Company believes in following policies in line with those followed by Ircon
International Limited — its Holding Company in terms of delegation of powers to
Officers and authorising the personnel in their respective capacities.

The Power to Appoint Directors on the Board of the Company rests with the Holding
Company — Ircon except additional, alternate or causal directors. Further, the
Chairman of the Company in terms of Article 59 of the Articles of Association of the
Company reserves for the decision of the Holding Company — Ircon any important
issues that may be felt by Chairman to be decided by the Holding Company.

Audited ‘IND AS Financial Statements’:

The Audited IND AS Financial Statements of the Company comprising the Balance
Sheet as on 315t March 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31°
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March 2020, Statement of Changes in Equity, summarized Significant Accounting
Policies, notes to accounts and other explanatory information, was approved by the
Board of Directors at their 42" BoD meeting held on 24" June 2020 as provided in
this Annual Report.

(iii) CEO and CFO Certification:

The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have certified
that the Financial Statements of the Company reflect a true and fair view of the
Company’s Affairs and contains all material information. The said certificate has been
attached as ANNEXURE - VI.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon PB Tollway Limited

sd/-

Shyam Lal Gupta
Chairman

DIN: 07598920

Date: 19.08.2020
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE —|

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT (MDAR)

(i) Industry Structure and Developments

Construction Industry over the years with respect to construction of roads and highways
is spearheading towards more growth and more capital contribution being made to
develop and operate such projects on BOT Basis as awarded by NHAI.

NHAI is awarding such projects enabling investors and contractors to earn stable
incomes with less risk of loss or uncertainties based on area’s traffic assessment as
compared to other industries where demand and supply factors alongwith availability of
substitutes as service providers. Herein such projects when awarded are critically
evaluated before issue of letter of acceptance to the party in terms of credibility and
financial position to execute the project, making estimated earnings from such projects
less susceptible from market ups and downs.

As such NHAI under its flagship Programme NHDP-Phase IV has taken as the
challenge to develop, expand the National Highways (NH) network in the Country. For
implementation of the scheme, the work of widening and strengthening of the Bikaner-
Phalodi Section (NH-15) in the State of Rajasthan for which tender was floated by NHAI
in which Ircon International Limited (IRCON — 100% Holding Company) participated,
bagged the contract for execution and formulated SPV named as Ircon PB Tollway
Limited. This project based on industrial trends has growth potential and has increased
propensity to make huge collections from highway consumers relative to inflation rates
existing in the economy.

(i) Strengths and Weaknesses

» Strengths

Due to increased focus of government on infrastructure sector, the roads and highways
network is going to expand further with more and more investments flowing into it.
Good growth in road traffic is in a way impetus for priority sector development by
Government of India — Make in India and Industrial Corridors adding up to the demand
for better road connectivity and smooth flow of traffic. Rate of growth in Traffic on
highways is expected to rise with more economic and industrial developments in the
next two years. With a growing population in India, demand for road transport would
increase further by 2020, implying more investments and more returns.

> Weaknesses

(i) Chances of Natural disadvantage are there.

(i) Construction Projects relating to highways face issues with respect to efficiency in
delivering timely output.

(iif) Unexpected cost escalations due to increase in price of petroleum products and
natural materials.

(iii) Opportunities and Threats

> Opportunities
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(i) Continuous rising vehicles on the roads and highways shall bring stability and growth
in operations and the related profitability.

(i) Development of Estimated Benefit —Cost Analysis Model for Highway Projects helps in
quantifying expected revenues (toll income) over a long-period of time, as compared to
rendering of other services.

> Threats

(i) Delay in implementation of highway project not only increases the project costs but
also affect revenues due to limited concession period and increased burden of interest
payments.

(i) In BOT projects, cost of inputs has to be maintained at estimated levels and forecast of
traffic has to be achieved with less scope for variations.

(iif) Land encumbrance issue also results in delay in handing over of land by the authority -
NHAI to the Concessionaire Company.

(iii)  Outlook

National Highways Authority of India (NHAI) under its flagship project “National Highways
Development Program (NHDP)” is planning to give further boost to the construction
industry by way of awarding more highway projects and encouraging private partnerships
and use of innovative technologies for development.

(iv) Risks and Concerns

» Performance Management is a daunting task.

» Existing Risk Assessment Models for construction projects are not at par with practices
followed in developed countries.

(v) Discussion on Financial Performance w.r.t Operational Performance

The Company has now entered into Operation and Maintenance Phase, viz. Commercial
Tolling Operations, and has started earning toll revenues from February 2019 — date of
Provisional Commercial Operations Date (‘Provisional COD’).The work of Bikaner Phalodi
Highway Project has been completed and it is under process of issuance of COD by NHAI.
Further, the revenue generated from toll operations from February 2019 till 31° March
2020 is Rs.49.86 Crores. The collection of revenue has been affected due to COVID-19.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon PB Tollway Limited

Sd/-
Shyam Lal Gupta
Chairman
DIN: 07598920
Date: 19.08.2020
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE - I

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
AS ON FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2020

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014

. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1.| CIN U45400DL2014G0I1272220
2. Registration Date 30™ September 2014

3. | Name of the Company Ircon PB Tollway Limited

4, Government Company

Category/Sub-category of the

Company (Wholly-owned Subsidiary Company of Ircon

International Limited)

5. | Address of the Registered office &

. C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi -110017
contact details

6. | Whether Listed or Unlisted

Company Unlisted Company

7. | Name, Address & contact details
of the Registrar & Transfer Agent, | Not Applicable
if any.

. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY: (All the business activities
contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S. | Name and Description of Main Products / NIC Code of the % to total
No. | Services Products/Services | turnover of
the Company
1. Rendering Services in the nature of construction of
Project Highway on Bikaner-Phalodi Section (NH-15) in 42101 100%

the State of Rajasthan:

Construction Services: Highway Project (Through EPC
Contractor)

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

S. | NAME AND CIN HOLDING/ % of Applicable
No. | ADDRESS OF THE SUBSIDIARY / Shares Section
COMPANY ASSOCIATE held
1 IRCON L45203DL1976GOI008171 HOLDING 100% * Sec 2(46)
INTERNATIONAL COMPANY
LIMITED

*100% Shares held by Ircon International Limited (IRCON) and its 8 Nominees.
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN
(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

A) CATEGORY-WISE SHARE HOLDING:

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year
[As on 01-April-2018]

[As on 31-March-2019]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

Demat

Physical Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

%
Change
during
the year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF

b) Central Govt

c) State Govt(s)

d) Bodies
Corp.#

165000000 165000000

165000000

165000000

e) Banks / FI

f) Any other

(2) Foreign

Total
Shareholding
of Promoters
(A)

Nil

165000000 (165000000

100%

Nil

165000000

165000000

100%

Nil

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual
Funds

b) Banks / FI

c¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) FlIs

h) Foreign

Venture Capital

Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

i) Overseas
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b) Individuals - - - - - - - - R

i) Individual - - - - - - - - N
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto " 1 lakh

ii) Individual - - - - - - - - -
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of " 1
lakh

c) Others - - - - - - - - -
(specify)

Non Resident - - - - - - - - _
Indians

Overseas - - - - - - - - _
Corporate
Bodies

Foreign - - - - - - - - -
Nationals

Clearing - - - - - - - - -
Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies - - - - - - - - -
-DR

Sub-total - - - - - - - - -
(B)(2):-

Total Public - - - - - - - - -
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

C. Shares held - - - - - - _ - -
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total

(A+B+C) Nil (165000000 (165000000 | 100% | Nil | 165000000 | 165000000 | 100% Nil

# Bodies Corporate: 100% Shareholding is with Body Corporate — Ircon International Limited and its 8
Nominees.
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B) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS:

SN | Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the year %
Name the year Change
No. of % of Total %of No. of % of %of Shares n
Shares | Shares of | Shares Shares Total Pledged / |Shareho
the Pledged / Shares |encumbered | !ding
Company |encumber of the to Total during
ed to total company | Shares the Year
shares
1 Ircon International | 165000000 100% Nil 165000000 100% Nil Nil
Limited $
Total 165000000 100% Nil 165000000 100% Nil Nil

$ Shareholding of Promoters: Company is wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited —
with 16,50,00,000 Equity Shares of * 10/- each i.e. Entire Shareholding held by Indian Promoters.

The other 8 shareholders are Nominees of Ircon International Limited as per mandatory requirement
for formation of Public Limited Company and for meeting the requirement of quorum of 5 members at
every general meeting.

C) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING:

SN Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative
beginning of the Year* Shareholding during
the Year*
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of Shares Shares of
the the
Company Company
1. | At the Beginning of the Year 165000000 100% 165000000 100%
2. | Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer / NIL
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
3. | At the End of the Year 165000000 | 100% [165000000 | 100%

*Financial Year beginning from 1% April to 31%' March.

D) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS:
(OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS):

N For Each of the Top 10Shareholders Shareholding at the Cumulative
beginning Shareholding
of the year during the
Year
No. of % of Total| No. of | % of Total
Shares Shares of | Shares | Shares of
the the
Company Company
1. | At the Beginning of the Year
2. | Date wise Increase [/ Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for NOT APPLICABLE
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc.)
3. | Atthe End of the Year

E) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.:
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Shareholding of Each Director(s) and
Each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Shareholding at the Cumulative
beginning Shareholding during the
of the FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of the Shares | Shares of the
Company Company

At the Beginning of the Year (01-04-2019)

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc.):

At the End of the Year (31-03-2020)

NIL

$ 100 equity shares of Rs. 10 each held by the directors of the Company, viz. Shri Ashok
Kumar Goyal, Shri Rajendra Singh Yadav and 200 equity shares of Rs.10 each held by the
Chairman of the Company i.e. Mr. S.L. Gupta, only “For and on behalf of Ircon International

Limited (Ircon).”

F) INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/ accrued

but not due for payment.

(Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars Secured Loans | Unsecured | Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year 240.85 240.85
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid - B -
iii) Interest accrued but not due -
Total (i+ii+iii) 240.85 240.85
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
* Addition 97.00 97.00
* Reduction -
Net Change 97.00 97.00
Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year
i) Principal Amount 337.85 337.85
ii) Interest due but not paid ) ]
iii) Interest accrued but not due 3 3
Total (i+ii+iii) 337.85 337.85
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V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS AND/OR
MANAGER:

SN.

Particulars of Remuneration @

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total
Amount

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-

tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

BN

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5. | Others, please specify

Total (A) $

NIL

Ceiling as per the Act

NOT APPLICABLE

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:

SN. | Particulars of Remuneration @

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

1 Independent Directors

Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

NOT APPLICABLE

2 Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2) $

NOT APPLICABLE

Total Managerial Remuneration

NIL

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

NOT APPLICABLE

$ Executive and Non-Executive Directors: As on the closure of financial year 2019-20, the
Company has four Non-Executive (Nominee) Directors on its Board, drawing Nil Remuneration in

terms of Sitting Fees or Commission.
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C.REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD):

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

N | Particulars Key Managerial Personnel

of
Remunerati CEO Ccs CFO Total

on

Shri. Shri Ms. Ms. Shri Shri Shri
M. K. Atul Shudod | Anuradha Sanjay Bhushan| Manjur
Sharma Kumar hani Kaushik Poddar Kumar Moham
mad
Gouri*

1 | Gross
Salary

(a) Salary | 2,92,022 | 38,39,241 | 3,24,581 1,00,800 | 16,67,935 | 5,31,790 - 67,56,369
as per
provisions
contained in
section

17(1) of the
Income-tax
Act, 1961

(b) Value of - - - - - -
perquisites
u/s 17(2)
Income-tax
Act, 1961

(c) Profits in - - - - - -
lieu of salary
under
section
17(3)
Income- tax
Act, 1961

2 | Stock - - - - -
Option

3 | Sweat - - - - -
Equity

4 | Commission -

- as % of - - - -
profit

others, - - - -
specify...

5 | Others, - - - -
please
specify

Total 2,92,022 | 38,39,241 | 3,24,581 1,00,800 | 16,67,935 | 5,31,790 - 67,56,369

* Shri Manjur Mohammad Gouri was deputed as CFO w.e.f 18" March 2020 by IRCON (Holding Company)
and for the month of March, the salary was paid from the Holding Company.
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VI. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority | Appeal
the Description Penalty / [RD/ made,
Companies Punishment/ NCLT/ if any
Act Compounding COURT] (give
fees imposed Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment NIL*
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment NIL*
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment NIL*
Compounding

Date: 19.08.2020
Place: New Delhi
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon PB Tollway Limited

Sd/-
(Shyam Lal Gupta)
Chairman
DIN-07598920



ANNEXURE - 1lI

FORM NO. AOC-2

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered by the Company with
related parties referred in section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, including certain arms-
length transactions under third proviso thereto

[Pursuant to Section 134 (3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014]

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: As follows

Name of the Duration of Salient terms of Date of
Related Nature of the the Contracts/ aporoval Amount
S.| Party and contracts/ Arrangements/ Pp paid as
No, Nature of arrangement/ contracts/ Transactions by  the advance
9
Relationshi transactions arrangen_1ent including the _Board, s, if any:
Itransactions 9 if any: ’ y
p value, if any
1. |Ircon a) EPC Date:EPC Addendum No. 1, EPC NIL
Internationa | Agreement Agreement 2, 3, 4 to EPC |Agreement-
| Limited For appointing | dated Agreements have 05.01.2015
(Holding Ircon International | 19.01.2015
Company) |Limited as EPC Peen execluted for Addendum
Contractor for | Duration: incorporation  of g, 1.
execution of | 30 Months revised payment 42 03.2015
project works of | (Period  for | schedule retaining
construction of | Construction | the original cost of Addendum
four- or two-lane | by EPC |the value of [No.2:
project highway as | Contractor) Rs.646 Cr. ?3.03.2016
per scope of work
awarded including | 1. Addendum | Aqdendum No.5 fiddendum
development of | 1enteredon | 4, epc No. 3:
project facilities 12.06.2015 Agreements has p2.07.2016
been executed for
2. Addendum incorporation  of Addendum
2 enteredon | (ovised payment No. 4:
29.03.2016 schedule retaining 13.06.2017
the original total
3. Addendum | oot of the project Addendum
3enteredon | 5¢ the value of INO- 5
05.08.2016 Rs.767.48 Cr. 25.03.201
9
4. Addendum
4 entered on
06.07.2017
5. Addendum
5 entered on
05.04.2019
b) Lease Date: Lease rent @ 65 N.A. NIL
Agreement Lease sq. ft. X Rs.297/-
(Rent for Use of Agreement per sq. ft. on
Office Premises) dated monthly basis of
22.06.2018 Rs.19,305/-
and considering
10.06.2020 charges for
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b) Lease
Agreement
(Rent for Use of
Office Premises)

Date:
Lease
Agreement
dated
22.06.2018
and
10.06.2020
(Renewal)

Duration:
3 years w.e.f.
01.04.2018

Lease rent @ 65
sq. ft. X Rs.297/-
per sq. ft. on
monthly basis of
Rs.19,305/-

considering

charges for leased
premises inside
corporate office of
the IRCON and
increment of 10%
on renewal.

N.A. NIL

Date: 19.08.2020
Place: New Delhi
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon PB Tollway Limited

Sd/-
(Shyam Lal Gupta)
Chairman
DIN-07598920




Annexure-IV

S JINDAL & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Ircon PB Tollway Limited,

CIN: U45400DL2014GOI272220

C-4, District Centre, Saket, South Delhi,
New Delhi-110017

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Ircon PB Tollway Limited (hereinafter called
the company). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our Opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of the of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, | hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2020 complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March 2020 according to the
provisions of:

Office at:- B-4/47A, Phase-ll, Ashok Vihar, Delhi — 110052
Ph: 01123526495, Email: sjindalandassociates@gmail.com
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(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under
to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External

Commercial borrowings

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) were not found to be applicable to the Company:

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 and amendments from time to time;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999/ Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
Company;

(9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998;

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i) The Company has not entered into any listing agreement with any stock exchange(s),

thus there is no listing agreement with the Company for the compliance therewith.

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for the systems and
mechanisms formed by the Company for compliances under applicable Acts, Rules, Laws and
Regulations to the Company.

We have not examined compliance by the Company with applicable financial laws, like direct
and indirect tax laws and their regulatory compliances, since the same have been subject to

review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for

meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as
the case may be.

The Board of Directors has been appointed in the Company on nomination by the holding

company, Ircon International Limited, with only non-executive directors on its Board.

We further report that the Company has received additional secured loan from its Holding
Company amounting to Rs.122.74 Crore during the year. With respect to additional secured
loans, the company has not created a charge on the asset of the Company. As explained to us,

this additional secured loan is in the nature of special assistance from the Holding Company
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(which holds 100% shares in IrconPBTL) and a substantial amount is returned to the holding
company. The matter with respect to creation of charge on this additional secured loan is under
consideration by the Management.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance

with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For S Jindal & Associates

Company Secretaries

Shweta Jindal - FCS
M.No.F10398

COP.8879

UDIN: F010398B000589581

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17.08.2020.

30



(a)

ANNEXURE -V

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY PHILOSOPHY AND GOVERNANCE

IrconPBTL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of IRCON, has since its inception focused on
adhering to the principals of integrity, accountability, adequate disclosures and
compliances, transparency in corporate decision-making and actions. Procedures and
systems have been adopted and put in place, to ensure timely reporting to varied
statutory authorities and streamlining of corporate processes. Functional based roles
have been assigned amongst the personnel for managing the corporate work and
governance mechanisms in line with the Holding Company, IRCON, have been
internalised by the Company. The Report contains details of Corporate Governance
systems and processes at IrconPBTL.

Good Governance is practiced by having effective control over the affairs of the
company in the interest of the Company shareholders and other stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of Board of Directors as on 31% March 2020

Pursuant to Article 49 of the Articles of Association (AOA) of the Company, the power to
appoint Directors is with the Holding Company, (‘IRCON’). Accordingly, the Holding
Company, has appointed the following Non-executive Directors (‘Part-time Directors’)
on the Board of IrconPBTL through nomination as mentioned below. The Board of
Directors as on 31% March 2020 are as follows:

S. | Name of the | No. of Directorships in Other Committee
No | Directors & DIN Companies Memberships held in
Companies / Body
Corporates
(including
IrconPBTL)
As As
Chairman | Member
1. | Shri Shyam Lal 1. Ircon International Limited NIL 3
Gupta 2. Chhattisgarh East Railway
Part-Time Chairman Limited
3. Chhattisgarh East-West

(DIN: 07598920) . arn
f Railway Limited
(w.e.f.01.11.2019) | 4 Mahanadi Coal  Railway

Limited

5. Bastar Railway Private
Limited

6. Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway
Limited

7. Ircon Davanagere Haveri
Highway Limited

8. Ircon Vadodara Kim
Expressway Limited

2. | Shri Rajendra Singh | 1. Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway 2 2
Yadav Limited

Part-Time Director 2. Ircon Davanagere Haveri
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(DIN: 07752915)

3. Ircon

Highway Limited
Vadodara
Expressway Limited

Kim

Krishnan
(DIN: 07486148)
(w.e.f. 19.09.2019)

3. | Shri Ashok Kumar 1. Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway 2 2
Goyal Limited
Part-Time Director 2. Ircon Davanagere Haveri
. Highway Limited
(DIN:05308809) 3. Ircon Vadodara Kim
Expressway Limited
4. Ircon Infrastructure &
Services Limited
4. | Ms. Bhuvaneshwari NIL 2 NIL

(b) Directors who ceased to hold office during the FY 2019-20 and thereafter till the date

of this report)

Name of the Directors
& Designation

Directorships held in Companies/

Body Corporates (excluding

Committee
Memberships held in

IrconPBTL) Companies / Body
Corporates (including
IrconPBTL)
As As
Chairman | Member
Shri Deepak Sabhlok 1. Ircon International Limited 1 5
Part — time Chairman 2. Chhattisgarh East Railway Limited
[DIN 03056457] 3. Chhattisgarh East-West Railway
Limited
4. Mahanadi Coal Railway Limited
5. Bastar Railway Private Limited
6. Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway
Limited
7. Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway
Limited
8. Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway
Limited
9. Ircon-Soma Tollway Private
Limited
Shri Anand Kumar Singh |1. Ircon  Shivpuri Guna Tollway 2 3
Part — time Director Limited
[DIN 07018776] 2. Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway
Limited
3. Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway
Limited
Ms. Anupam Ban 1. Ircon  Shivpuri Guna Tollway 1 NIL
Part — time Director Limited
[DIN 07797026] 2. Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway
Limited
3. Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway
Limited
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Notes:

VI.

The number of Directorships is within the maximum limit of 20 Companies (out of
which maximum 10 public companies) under the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the directors are related to each other.

None of the directors have any pecuniary relationships or transactions with the
Company.

. The Directorships / Committee memberships are based on the latest disclosure

received from Directors.

Committee memberships of Audit Committees of all Public Limited Companies have
been considered.

The number of committee memberships of directors is within the maximum limit of
ten including the permitted limit of five chairmanships under the DPE Corporate
Governance Guidelines, 2010 (DPE Guidelines). Only Audit Committee is to be

counted for the said limit.

(c) Board Meetings and AGM held during the year:
During FY2019-20, the Board of Directors of the Company met nine times on:

8™ April 2019, 2" May 2019, 20" May 2019, 29" July 2019, 23™ August 2019, 19"
September 2019, 24" October 2019, 3™ December 2019, 31° January 2020. None of
the Board Meeting was held with a gap of more than 120 days.

Sr.

No. Date of Board Meeting

Board Strength

No. of Directors
Present

8™ April 2019

N

2" May 2019

20" May 2019

29" July 2019

23 August 2019

19" September 2019

24" October 2019

3 December 2019

OIXIN® OB W) N =

31% January 2020

Al OO

WA~ OOO

(d) Details regarding the attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and the Annual
General Meeting held during FY2019-20 are presented in the following table:

Name and designation of the | Number of Board Meeting | Attendance held
Director Held at the last
Held during | Attended | Annual General
their respective Meeting held on
tenure 26" August 2019
Shri Deepak Sabhlok 7 7 Yes
Part-Time Chairman
(upto 31% October 2019)
Shri Shyam Lal Gupta 2 2 *
Part-Time Chairman
(w.e.f. 1% November 2019)
Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal 9 8 Yes
Part-Time Director
Shri Anand Kumar Singh 5 5 Yes
Part-Time Director
(upto 4" September 2019)
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Shri Rajendra Singh Yadav 9 8 Yes
Part-Time Director

Ms. Anupam Ban 5 5 Yes
Part-Time Director
(upto 30" August 2019)

Ms.
Part-Time Director
(w.e.f. 19" September 2019)

Bhuvaneshwari Krishnan 4 4 *

* The respective person was not a Director of IrconPBTL as on the date of last AGM.

3. BOARD COMMITTEES:

During the FY 2019-20, in compliance with requirements under the requirements of
Companies Act, 2013, DPE Corporate Governance Guidelines and other requirements,
the Board of Directors has constituted the following committees:

l.
I.
[l
V.

Audit Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility & Sustainability Committee
Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Internal Complaints Committee (ICC)

3.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE*
1. Number of Meetings held during the FY 2019-20:

During the FY 2019-20, six meeting of Audit Committee meeting were held on 2nd May
2019, 20th May 2019, 29th July 2019, 23rd August 2019, 24th October 2019, 31st
January 2020.

2. Composition:

The Committee was last re-constituted on 19" September 2019 which comprised of the
following directors:

Member of the Committee Designation
Ms. Bhuvaneshwari Krishnan Chairman
Part-Time Director

Shri A. K. Goyal Member
Part-Time Director

Shri R. S. Yadav Member
Part-Time Director

3. Terms of Reference:

(i)
(ii)

(iif)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)
(vii)

the recommendation for remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the company;
Review or examination of the Quarterly and Annual Financial Statements and
Auditors’ Report thereon before submission to the Board for approval;

Review of follow-up action on the audit observations of the C&AG Audit

approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by
them;

approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with
related parties;

scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
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(viii) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems and review
of internal audit reports;

(ix) reviewing the performance of internal auditors and adequacy of internal control
systems; and

(x) monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

3.2 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC)*
1. Composition:

The Committee was last re-constituted on 19" September 2019 which comprised of the
following directors:

Member of the Committee Designation
Ms. Bhuvaneshwari Krishnan Chairman
Part-Time Director

Shri A. K. Goyal Member
Part-Time Director

Shri R. S. Yadav Member
Part-Time Director

2. Terms of Reference:
a. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall-
I.  Review the policies for selection of persons in Senior Management (one level below
the Director) and other employees as per DPE and other Government Guidelines,

and recommend the same for approval to the Board;
. Recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the key

managerial personnel and other employees; and
Ill. Any other work as may be included by Companies Act or DPE Guidelines from time
to time.

* In pursuance of MCA’s exemption notification and exemption granted by DPE
from the compliance of DPE Corporate Governance Guidelines, Audit Committee
and Nomination & Remuneration Committee has been rescinded by the Board at
its meeting held on w.e.f. 31°" January 2020.

3.3 CSR & SUSTAINABILTY (CSR-SY) COMMITTEE & ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR
Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, the ‘CSR and Sustainability Committee (CSR-
SY)’ of the Board was constituted on approval accorded at the 19" BoD meeting of
Company held on 8" February 2017.

During the FY 2019-20, one meeting of CSR-SY Committee was held on 2" May 2019.
The Committee was last reconstituted on 19" September 2019 and as on date
comprises of the following Directors:

Member of the Committee Designation
Shri A. K. Goyal Chairman
Part-Time Director

Ms. Bhuvaneshwari Krishnan Member
Part-Time Director

Shri R. S. Yadav Member
Part-Time Director
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4. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The details of General Meetings held during the FY 2019-20 are tabulated as below:

Sr. No. | Type of Shareholder | Date of Meeting Details of Special
Meeting Resolution Passed
1. Second Extraordinary | 20™ May 2019 Borrowing Powers of
General Meeting Company in excess of paid-
(EGM) up Share Capital and Free

Reserves u/s 180(1)(c) of
Companies Act, 2013.

2. Fifth Annual General | 26™ August 2019 N.A.

Meeting (AGM)

5. DISCLOSURES AND STATUTORY COMPLIANCES

Adequate disclosures pertaining to director's interest, related party transactions,
maintenance of statutory registers have been taken and placed periodically before the
Board of Directors to take informed decisions, with the Board following a clear policy of
specific delegation and authorization of designated officers to handle the business
matters. MCA Filings with respect to disclosures, intimations, allotments and
appointments have been made in a time bound manner with no pending matters.

6. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE BY CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have certified in writing with
respect to the truth and fairness of the financial statements, due compliances, and
financial reporting which was placed before the Board of Directors (placed as
“Annexure” to this Report).

7. CERTIFICATE FOR COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES

DPE Guidelines, 2010 prescribes a certificate to be obtained from the Statutory Auditors
or the Practicing Company Secretary for corporate governance guidelines followed by
the Company.

Certificate obtained from a Practising Company Secretary regarding the compliance of
the conditions of Corporate Governance is placed as “Annexure” to this Report.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon PB Tollway Limited

Sd/-
(Shyam Lal Gupta)
Chairman
DIN-07598920

Date: 19.08.2020
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure

S JINDAL & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE UNDER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES OF DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLIC ENTERPRISES (DPE), 2010

To

The Members of

Ircon PB Tollway Limited

CIN: U45400D1.2014G01272220
C-4, District Centre, Saket,
New Delhi — 110017

In respect of the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance for the year ended
31%March, 2020, by Ircon PB Tollway Limited (CIN: U45400DL2014GOI272220), a Government
Company under section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013 (corresponding sections 2(18) and 617 of
the Companies Act, 1956), as required by the Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by the

Department of Public Enterprises (DPE).

We have studied the Report on Corporate Governance of the said Company as approved by its Board
of Directors. We have also examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the

Company and furnished to us for our review in this regard.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to review of procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an

audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of the Company.

We state there has been no investor grievance during the year against the Company as per the

records maintained by the Company.

Office at: - B-4/47A, Phase-ll, Ashok Vihar, Delhi — 110052
Ph: - 01123526495, Email: sjindalandassociates@gmail.com
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We further comment that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of

the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and on the basis of our review and according to the
information and explanation given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the
mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance in all material respects as required by the

Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), except:

Non-appointment of Independent Directors on its Board and Constitution of Audit Committee and
Nomination & Remuneration Committee without Independent Directors, under the provisions of
DPE Corporate Governance Guidelines, 2010. However, it is exempt under the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and also it is understood that the appointment of Directors is being done by the
Holding Company i.e. Ircon International Limited (in pursuance with the Articles of Association of

the Company)

It is further stated that the aforesaid opinion is based upon the submissions made by the Company
with supporting documents and correspondence files and the secretarial and other statutory records

maintained by the Company.

For S JINDAL & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

Shweta Jindal - FCS

M No: F10398

CP No- 8879

UDIN: F010398B000585863

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17.08.2020
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Annexure-VI

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION

We have reviewed the Financial Statements Including the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss
and the Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year 2019-20 and to the best of our knowledge and
belief:-

() These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statement that might be misleading;

(i) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(i) These are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal, or violative of the Company's General Code of
Conduct as agreed to be followed by the Directors and Senior Management of the Company.

(iv) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company
pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed to the auditors deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or
propose to rectify these deficiencies.

(v) We have indicated to the Auditor any changes in Accounting Policies that may have been
effected during the year, and that the same have been disclosed in the Notes to the Financial
Statements; and

(vi) There was no instance of fraud of which we are aware nor there has been involvement of the
Management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system

over financial reporting.
b 7
7 ) - SXog

Mr. Atul Kumar Mr. Manjur Mohammad Gouri
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
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(A AN ga'zg & eompany

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members IRCON PB Tollway Ltd
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of IRCON PB
Tollway Ltd (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information hereinafter referred to as “Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements”). In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including the Indian Accounting Standards (“*Ind AS”), of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2020, its profit including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“"ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and Rules there under and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit
matter to be communicated in our report:

Modified Audit Procedures carried out in light of COVID-19 outbreak:

Due to COVID-19 pandemic, Nationwide lockdown and travel restrictions imposed by Central /
State Government / Local Authorities during the period of our audit and to facilitate car out
audit remotely wherever physical access was not possible, audit could not be congiGts:
visiting the premises of certain Branches/LHOS/ Business Units in the Corporate Of
Company.

309-310, Aggarwal Millenium Tower-1, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, Delhi-110 034
Ph.: +91-11-27351188, 45781199 | Email : anggggco@gmail.com | Web : www.angargcompany.com



As we could not gather audit evidence in person/physically through discussion and personal
interactions with the officials at the Branches/Circle Administrative /Corporate Offices, we have
identified such modified audit procedures as a Key Audit Matter.

Accordingly, our audit procedures were modified to carry out the audit remotely.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic that caused nationwide lockdown and other travel
restrictions imposed by the Central and State Governments/local administration during the
period of our audit, we could not travel to the Branches/Circle /Administrative /Corporate Offices
and carry out the audit processes physically at the respective offices.

Wherever physical access was not possible, necessary records/reports/ documents/ certificates
were made available to us by the Company through digital medium, emails and remote access
and other relevant application software. To this extent, the audit process was carried out on the
basis of such documents, reports and records made available to us why were relied upon as
audit evidence for conducting the audit and reporting for the current period.

Accordingly, we modified our audit procedures as follows:

a) Conducted verification of necessary records/ documents and other Application software
electronically through remote access/emails in respect of some of the Administrative
Offices and other offices of the Company wherever physical access was not possible.

b) Carried out verification of scanned copies of the documents, deeds, certificates and the
related records made available to us through emails and remote access over secure
network of the Bank.

¢) Making enquiries and gathering necessary audit evidence through Video Conferencing.
Dialogues and discussions over phone calls/conference calls, emails and similar
communication channels.

d) Resolution of our audit observations telephonically through email instead of a face-to-
face interaction with the designated officials.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 13Zafahex

read with relevant rules issued there under.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 3 AR
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for|pFevwents
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of approprig
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policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of this Standalone Ind AS financial statements. As part of an audit in
accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143 (3) (i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to unicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thou our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31% March, 2020, and its profit/loss, total comprehensive income/ loss, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company; so far it appears from our examination of these books.

C) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d)In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act with relevant rules issued there
under.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company
as on 31st March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:In our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid / provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone Ind AS financial statements.

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred e Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As Required by Section 143(5) of the Act and as per the directions issued by Comptroller and
Auditor General of India we report that:

Sl. Directions Auditor’s Replies
No.
1. Whether the company has system in place | The company has Tally system to process

to process all the Accounting transactions | all the accounting transacting and used
through IT system? If yes, then implications | for preparation of the financial accounts.
of processing of accounting transactions | No accounting transaction has been
outside IT system on the integrity of the | processed outside the IT system
accounts  along  with the financial
implications, If any, may be stated

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an | Yes, Company has applied to lender its
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of holding company, M/s IRCON
debts/loans/interest etc made by lender to | International for restructuring of the loan
the company due to company’s inability to | and also for waiver of the interest amount
repay the loan? If yes the Financial impact | of Rs. 18,91,58,653/- for the period
may be stated. 01.10.2019-31.03.2020.

3. Whether funds received/receivable for Company has recorded viability gap
specific  schemes from central/state | funding (VGF) in form of Equity support
agencies were properly accounted | for the project as receivable from National
for/utilized as per its terms and conditions? | Highway Authority of India (NHAI).
Company has partly received VGF from
NHAI and same has been accounted and
utilized as per the terms and conditions of
the agreement.

For A. N. GARG& COMPA NY

A. N. GARG
(FCA, Partner)
M.No.-083687

Place: DELHI
Date: 24-06-2020

UDIN: 20083687AAAADY8630
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Annexure “A”

To the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements” of our Report of even date to the financial statements
of the company for the period 1**April’ 2019 to 31 March’2020.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:-

(i) (a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

(b) These fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals; any material discrepancies were not noticed on such verification;

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

(i) The company has not Dealing in any Inventory during the year nor is there any
OpeningStocks.

(iii) As informed, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly paragraph 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

(IV) Based on information and explanations given to us In respect of loans, investments,
guarantees, and security, have been complied with (wherever applicable on the company)
necessary provision of section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits during the year to which directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules framed there under.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2016, as amended, prescribed by the Central
Government under sub - section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of
the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained.
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) As explained to us and as per the books and records examined by us, undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax,
Custom Duty, Wealth Tax, Sales Tax, GST, Excise duty, Cess and other statutory dues
have been generally deposited with the appropriate authority on regular basis.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service
tax, sales-tax, GST, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(€) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and relied
upon by us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Custom Duty, Wealth Tax, Sales Tax; 646
Excise duty & Cess , which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. y
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“(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues of banks or financial
institutions. The Company did not have any outstanding in respect of debentures during the
year.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management the Company has not raised money by way of public issue offer and hence the
question of utilization of money raised by way of initial public offer does not arise. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
utilized the term loans for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
by the Company or any fraud on the company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the
management.

(xi)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, managerial
remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act.

(xii) In our opinion on the basis of information and explanations given by the management, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are
not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, all transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Therefore, paragraph 3
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him
during the year.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, provision of
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to company.

A. N. GARG
(FCA, Partner)
M.No.-083687

Place: DELHI
Date: 24-06-2020
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Annexure - B

To the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

To the Members of IRCON PB Tollway Ltd

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of IRCON
PB Tollway Ltd (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management'’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company'’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
ontrols based on the internal control with reference to financial statements Criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to €xpress an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
re

ference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing

the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
Preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial
Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company'’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For A. N. GARG& COMPANY
Chartered Accourff2
FRN- 004616N

Do

A. N. GARG
(FCA, Partner)
M.No.-083687

Place: DELHI
Date: 24-06-2020
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED
(CIN - U45400DL2014GO1272220 )
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2020

(In Rs.)
Particulars Note No. As at 31st March 2020 | As at 31st March 2019
L. |ASSETS
1 |Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,300,452 272,519
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress a .
(c) Investment Property - -
(d) Intangible Assets 4 4,949,615,495 5,179,888,229
(¢) Intangible Assets under Development 4 169,377,260 48,850,193
(f) Right-of-use Assets - .
() Financial Assets 5
(i) Investments - -
(ii) Loans - 3,200
(iii) Others 5.1 9,949,440 9,964,440
(h) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 8,103,145 8,103,145
(i) Other Non-Current Assets - -
Total Non-Current Assets
2 |Current Assets
(a) Inventories - -
(b) Financial Assets 7
(i) Investments - -
(ii) Trade Receivables 7.1 96,629,220 151,485,769
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 72 127,600,077 12,885,700
(v) Other Bank Balances - -
(vii) Loans 73 1,387 -
(viii) Others 74 511,314,395 1,127,858,190
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 8 67,758,104 44,781,428
(d) Other Current Assets 9 24,355 25,926,805
(e) Assets held for Sale - -
Total Current Assets
Total Assets 5,941,673,330 6,610,019,618
II. |[EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
(2) Equity Share Capital 10 1,650,000,000 1,650,000,000
(b) Other Equity 11 (153,763,458) 18,072,841
Total Equity
2 |Liabilities
(i) |Non-Current Liabilities
(2) Financial Liabilities 12
(i) Borrowings 12.1 3,792,909,091 3,096,958,333
(ii) Trade Payables
- Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises
and Small Enterprises ° °
- Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors Other than
of Micro and Small E; i 3 °
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities - -
(b) Provisions - -
() Other Non-Current Liabilities - -
Total Non-Current Liabilities
(i) | Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities 13
(i) Borrowings 13 379,290,909
(i) Borrowings 13.1 281,541,667
(i) Trade Payables 13.2
- Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises
and Small Enterprises - '
- Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors Other than
of Micro ies and Smvall § 70,130,288 26,569,108
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 133 45,177,318 10,644,841
(b) Other Current Liabilities 14 1,253,328 24,164,606
(c) Provisions 15 156,675,854 1,502,068,221
(d) Current Tax Liability (Net) 5 "
Total Current Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,941,673,330 6,610,019,618
1L | Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1-2
forming part of Financial Statements 3-38
of even date attached
= - Heeh
i il
0\( W (S.L.Gupta) (RS Yadav)  (Bhuvneshwari Krishnan)
(Chairman) Director Director

M. No. 083687 &
UDIN 2 50593657 AMRADBBE, o’

(Atul Kumar) r M Gouri)
Place : New Delhi (Chief Executive Officer) (Chief Financial Officc

Date : a\\\a L%

Din No. 07598920

Din No. 07486148

Din No.07752915
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED
(CIN - U45400DL2014GO1272220)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2020

> 43

(In Rs.)
For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Rarticalary NeteNe: March 2020 March 2019
1. |Revenue :
Revenue from operations 16 704,035,925 3,560,674,506
Add :-C 's share of in d Joint op B R
(unincorporated)
704,035,925 3,560,674,506
1L |Other income 17 3,336,482 8,253,606
1L Total Income (I + IT) 707,372,407 3,568,928,112
IV. |Expenses:
Materials and Stores Consumed - *
(Increase) / Decrease in WIP - -
Project Expenses 18 420,078,759 3,288,375,022
Employee Benefits Expenses 19 28,226,549 217,870,483
Finance Costs 20 199,504,652 252,184,113
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 21 230,416,982 21,700,899
Other Expenses 18 844,376 1,076,381
Proporti share of exp inl d Joint op B ~
(unincorporated)
Total Expenses (IV) 879,071,319 3,597,206,898
V. |Profit Before exceptional items and Tax (III - V) -171,698,911.14 -28,278,786
VL. |Exceptional items - -
VIL. | Profit before tax (V + VI) -171,698,911 -28,278,786
VIIL | Tax expenses:
(1) Current tax
- For the Period - -
- For earlier years (net) 137,388 -
(2) Deferred tax (net) - (7,057,316)
Total Tax Expense 137,388 (7,057,316)
IX |Profit for the year from continuing operation (VI - VIII) -171,836,299 -21,221,470
X |Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - -
XI |Tax Expense of discontinued operations - -
X1 |Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (after tax) (X-XI) - -
X111 | Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII) -171,836,299 -21,221,470
X |Other Comprehensive Income
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(i) Income Tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss - %
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(i) Income Tax relating to Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss R R
- 0
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX +X) (Comprising
x profit/(loss) and other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax) 171,836,299.14 LA2AT
XII |Eamings Per Equity Share:
(For Continuing Operation)
(1) Basic 30 -1.04 -0.13
(2) Diluted -1.04 -0.13
Face Value Per Equity Share J
X1I1 | Summary of Significant Accounting policies 1-2
X1V [Notes forming part of fi ial 3-38
of even date attached ! l
< (7o 4 ‘L‘ ®
N\ \
For AN Garg & Co. l“\ \ (S.L.Gupta) (R.S Yadav) (Bhuvneshwari Krishnan)
Charteréd Accountants | | (Chairman) Director Director
A, / /Mot\\‘( Din No. 07598920 Din No.07752915 Din No. 07486148
Wl
(Atul Kumar) (Mafijur M Gouri) Anuradhp Kaushik
M. No. 083687 (Chief Executive Officer) (Chief Financial Officer) ( Company Secretary)
UDIN 20083695 P-OMDY ¥63 0

Place : New Delhi

Date : &\\ Q)Wo
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED
(CIN - U45400DL2014GO1272220 )

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2020

(In Rs.)
Particulars For the year ended 31st March 2020 For the Year ended 31st March 2019
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before taxation (171,698,911) (28,278,786)
Adjustment for :
Depreciati ization and impai 230,416,982 27,700,899
Finance Cost 199,504,652 252,184,113
Interest Income (3,145,994) (7,307,125)
Operating Profit before Current /Non-Current Assets and Lianilities a 255,076,729 244,299,101
Adjustment for :
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivables/ Financial Assets - Loans 54,858,363 (151,156,539)
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories - -
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Assets & Financial Assets 642,648,709 (7,517,500)
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade Payables 43,561,180 (166,801,134)
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Liabilities, Financial Liabilities & Provisions (1,378,414,343) 1,511,089,618

) (637,346,091) 1,185,614,445

Cash Generated From Operations (1+2) (382,269,362) 1,429,913,546
Income Tax (Paid)/Refund received 21,529,110 21,529,110 (14,521,681) (14,521,681)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) (360,740,252) 1,415,391,865
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment including CWIP (1,172,181) (257,800)
Purchase of Intangible Assets/ I ible Assets under develoy (120,527,067) (2,480,596,793)
Interest Received 2,958,530 7,443,806
(Investment) / Maturity of Bank Deposits (having maturity of more than 3 N 200,000,000
months)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (118,740,718) (2,273,410,787)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan From IRCON (Holding Co.) 1,368,900,000 970,000,000
Repayment of Loan to IRCON (Holding Co.) (575,200,000)
Final Dividend (including Dividend Distribution Tax) paid - -
Interim Dividend (including Dividend Distribution Tax) paid - -
Adjustment of Prior Period Income in Retained Earnings -
Payment of Fee for increase in Authorised Capital - -
Borrowing Cost (199,504,652) (252,184,113)
Payment to DIPAM for Buy Back of Shares v - -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ©) 594,195,348 717,815,887
Effect of Exch differences on of Foreign Currency Cash & ®) R R
Cash Equivalents ;
NET DECREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C+D) 114,714,377 (140,203,035)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (OPENING) (E) 12,885,700 153,088,735
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CLOSING) (13] 127,600,077 12,885,700
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (F-E) 114,714,377 (140,203,035)

Note : 1. The above Cash flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method"as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7 on Statement of Cash Flows.

2. Figures in brackets represent outflow of cash.

i/ restated wh

3. Figures of the previous year have been regrouped /

(S.L.Gupta)
(Chairman)
Din No. 0759892(

(Atul Kumar)
(Chief Executive Officer)
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(R.S'Yadav)
Director
Din No.07752915
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(Manjur M Gouri)

(Chief Financial Officer)
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(Bhuvaneshwari Krishnan)
Director
Din No. 07486148

Anuragha Kaushik
( Company Secretary)



IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2020

(in Rs.)
A. Equity Share Capital
For the year ended 31st March, 2019
|Particulars Amount
|Balance as at 01 April, 2018 1,650,000,000
1,650,000,000
1,650,000,000
B. Other Equity
For the year ended 31st March, 2019
Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive Income
Exchange differences on
Particulars General Reserves Retained Earnings Capital Redemption Reserve translating the financial Toud
statement of a foreign operation
39,294,311 - 0 39,294,311|
5 -] - 0
39,294,311 - 0] 39,294,311
(21,221,470), -] -] -21,221,470)
Remeasurment of Defined Benefit Plans 0] -] -] -
Foreign Exchange translation difference -] -] 0 l_)l
Total Comprehensive Income for the period -21,221,470) - 0) =21,221,470
Dividends Paid 0 | - 0|
Dividend Distribution Tax [} B | gl
|Balance as at March 31, 2019 18,072,841 - 18,072,841
For the year ended 31st March, 2020
Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive Income
icul Exchange differences on
Eatte General Reserves Retained Earnings Capital Redemption Reserve translating the financial Total
statement of a foreign operation
18,072,841 - 0 18,072,841
- 9
18,072,841 -] -] 18,072,841
(171,836,299) -] - -171,836,299
0) -] -] -
i 0)
-171,836,299; - 0]
0f i o
0) -| g
X -153,763,458| -

\ FCA Partner
‘M. No. 083687 %
UDIN '100‘13;56 [ nia > 748

Place : New Del
Dam:g\‘\“w

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

(Chairman)
Din No. 07598920

(Atul Kumar)
(Chief Executive Officer)

52

(R.S Yadav)
Director
Din No.07752915

;t\§2
yjur M Gouri)
(Chiéf Financial Officer

(Bhuvaneshwari Krishnan)

Director
Din No. 07486148

Anuradhd Kaushik
( Company Secretary)

-



1. Corporate Information

Ircon PB Tollway Limited (‘lrcon PBTL') (CIN) U45400DL2014G01272220) is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (iRCON’). The Company came into existence when
IRCON incorporated IrconPBTL on 30.05.2014 on account of work awarded by NHAI for
widening and sirengthening of the existing Bikaner - Phalodi Section to 4 lane from Km. 4.200 to
Km. 55.250 and 2 Lane with Paved shoulder from Km. 55.250 to Km. 163.50 of NH 15 in the
state of Rajasthan on DBFOT (Design, Built, Finance, and Operate & Transfer) basis in
accordance with the terms and conditions in the concession agreement signed with NHAI. In
pursuant to the provisions of ‘Request for Proposal’, the selected bidder ‘IRCON’' formed
IrconPBTL as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV). The Company obtained Certificate of
Commencement of Business on 10" Oct 2014 from the office of Registrar of Companies.
Accordingly, SPV has signed the Concession Agreement with NHAI on 7" Nov 2014. As per
provisions of Concession Agreement Article 24, clause 24.1, the Concessionaire is obliged to
achieve financial close within 180 days from the date of agreement so that NHAI may notify the
date of appointment, known as Appointed Date before physical commencement of the project.
The financial close was completed by concessionaire during the financial year 2015-16;
accordingly, the appointed date was fixed by NHAI on 14th Oct 2015. The concession period of
26 years including construction period commenced on 14th Oct 2015 on Appointed Date notified
by the NHAI. NHAI is to provide Viability Gap Fund (VGF) of Rs.327.00 crores as per provisions
of the concession agreement.

Company received provisional Commercial Operation Date (COD) on 15" Feb 2019

The presentation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR). Figures in
financial statements are presented in crore, by rounding off upto two decimals except for per
share data and as otherwise stated.

2. Summary of Significant Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

i.  The financiai statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS
compliant Schedule 1l1), as applicable to the financial statements.

i. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual
system of accounting. The company has adopted the historical cost basis for assets and
liabilities, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair
value:

» Provisions, where the effect of time value of money is material are measured at
present value
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2.2

vi.

vii.

¢« Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Current vs non-current classification

The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

* Expected to be realized or intended o be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢ Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period,

o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The company classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is current when:
* ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
* |tis held primarily for the purpose of trading
* ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the fiability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period
The company classifies all other iiabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their

realization in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle..

2.3 Statement of Cash Flow

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipis or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of
the Company are segregated based on the available information.

2.4. Property, Plant and Egquipment

Recognition and initial measurement

» Property, Piant and Equipment is recognized when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of
each item can be measured reliably. Property, Plant and Equipment are initially




stated at their cost.
Cost of assel includes
Purchase price, net of any trade discount and rebates.

(a) Borrowing cost if capitalization criteria is met.

(b) Cost directly atiributable to the acquisition of the assets which incurred in bringing
asset to its working condition for the intended use.

{c) Incidental expenditure during the construction period is capitalized as part of the
indirect construction cost to the extent the expenditure is directly related o
construction or is incidental thereto.

(d) Present value of the estimated cosis of dismantling & removing the items & restoring
the site on which it is located if recognition criteria are met.

Freehold land is carried at historical cost.

ii. SubseguentMeasurement

« Property, Plant and Equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure
is capitalized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the company and cost of the expenditure can be measured
reliably.

« Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts and borrowing costs
for long-term construction projects are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met.

» The machinery spares are capitalized if recognition criteria are met.

ii. Depreciation and Useful fives

« Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment, excluding freehold land is provided
on straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as specified in
schedule Il of the Companies act, 2013 given as follows:

Particulars Useful lives (Years)
Building/flats residential/ 60
non-residential

Plant and Machinery 8-15
Survey instruments 10
Computers 3-6
Office Equipment's 5-10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Caravans, Camps and temporary shed  3-5
Vehicles 8-10

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during
the period is charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is
available for use/disposed




« Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if
the cost of part is significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of
that part is different from the useful life of remaining asset.

e Properiy Plant and Equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to
Rs. 5000/- are fully depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification.
However, Mobile phones provided to employees are charged to statement of profit
and loss irrespective of iis value.

« Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. “Ordinarily, the residual value of
an asset is up to 5% of the original cost of the asset” as specified in Scheduie Il of
the Companies Act, 2013.

iv. Derecognition

= An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognized
is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.

2.5  Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects and are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.

26  Investment Properties

i. HAecognition and Inftial Measurement

« Investment Property is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the property will flow to the company and the cost of property can be
measured reliably.

« Investment property comprises completed property, property under construction and
property held under a lease that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or for use in production
or administrative functions. Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs.

» Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of other
consideration given to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition or consiruction
or, where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognized in
accordance with the specific requirements of other Ind AS.
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ii. Subseguent Measurement and Deprecialion

* [nvestment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequent cost is added if recognition criteria
is met. The company depreciates building component of investment property on
straight line basis over 60 years from the date of original purchase/ completion of
construction. Freehold land and property under construction is not depreciated.

» Leasehold fand acquired on perpetual lease is not amartized.

e The residual values, useful fives and methods of depreciation of investment property
are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

» Though the company measures investment property using cost-based measurement,
the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value determined
based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent
valuer applying valuation model acceptable internationally.

ii. Derecognition
Investment Properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal.

The difference between the net disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

2.7 Intangible Assets

t.  Recognition and Initial Measuremert

» |ntangible Assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the company and cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if
capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use. Internally generated intangibles, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is
reflected in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred. Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance
Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible assets underdevelopment”

ii. Subseguent Measurement and Amorilization

Foliowing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Software cost up to Rs. 1 Lakhs in each case is fully
amortized in the period of purchase, by keeping Rs. 1 as itoken value for identification.

e The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period 36 months from the date
of its acquisition.




Amortization on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the period is
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for
use/disposed

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each
financial year end.

ii. Derecognition

An Intangible Asset shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-
recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is de-recognised.

iv.  Toll Collection Right (Toll Road Service Concession Arrangement)

a) In respect of Public to Private Arrangements (PPA), on a Built-Operate-Transfer

b)

d)

(BOT) basis, Intangible Assets i.e. Right to collect toliftariff are recognised when the
company has been granted rights 1o charge a tolltariff from the users of such public
services and such rights do not confer an unconditional right on the Group to receive
cash or another Financial Asset and when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the rights will flow to the company and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

The company consiructs or upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade
services) used to provide a public service and operates and maintains that
infrastructure (operation services) for a specified period of time. These arrangements
may include infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession
arrangement for its entire useful life.

Under the Concession Agreements, where the company has received the right to
charge users of the public service, such rights are recognised and classified as
‘Intangible Assets” in accordance with Appendix C to Ind AS 115 - Service
Concession Arrangemenis.

Such right is not an unconditional right to receive consideration because the amounts
are contingent ta the extent that the public uses the service and thus are recognised

and classified as intangible assets. Such an iniangible asset is recognised by the




g)

h)

k)

company at cost (which is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
for the construction services delivered) and is capitalized when the project is
complete in all respects and when the company receives the completion ceriificate (
Provisional or Final) from the authority as specified in the Concession Agreement.

An asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognised on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal.

Service Concession Arrangements that meet the definition of an Intangible Asset are
recognised at cumulative construction cost. Till completion of construction of the
project, such arrangements are recognised as ‘Intangible Assets Under
Development” and are recognised at cumulative construction cost.

The Company recognizes Viability Gap Funding{VGF) in the nature of equity support.
Total expected amount of VGF is reduced from intangible assets under development
(being created under the service concession arrangement) and receivable under
current financial assets is recognized. Any amount received against the VGF is then
reduced from the current financial assets.

The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement
is the period from where the company is able to charge the public for use of
infrastructure to the end of the concession period.

Toll collection right is amortized using straight line method on pro-rata basis from the
date of addition or from the date when the right brought in o service to the expiry of
concession period.

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date, with the
effect of change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The carrying value of intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or more
often if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not

be recoverable.




2.8 Cash and cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent include cash on hand, cash at banks and shori-term deposits with
original maturities of three menths or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
unrestricted cash and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral
part of the Company’s cash management.

2.9  Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

i. Provisions

a) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to setile the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, considering the risk and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

b) If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

c) Provisions recognised by the Company include provisions for Maintenance,
Demobilization, Design Guarantee, Legal Cases, Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSRY), Onerous Contracts and others.

ii. Onerous contracis

a} An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs
that the company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting
from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation
or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. If the company has a contract that is
onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a
provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is
established, the company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on
assets dedicated to that contract.
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b) These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates.

Contingent fiabilities

a) Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present
obligations that may but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably.
When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which
likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no
provision or disciosure is made.

b) These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current

best estimates.
Contingent assets
Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.
210 Revenue Recognition

iii.

The Company recognizes and measures revenue from construction in accordance with
ind AS -175'Revenue from Contracts with Customers”™.

The Consideration received or receivable by the Company is a right to financial asset and an
intangible asset. The Company recognizes a financial asset to the extent it has an
unconditional right to receive cash which is specified determinable amount from or at the
direction of the grantor for the construction services and the Company recognizes an
intangible asset to the extent that it receives a sole and exclusive right to charge users of the
public service. A right to charge users of the public service is not an unconditional right to
receive cash because the amounts are contingent on the extent that the public uses the
service.

The Company recognizes coniract revenue on the satisfaction of a performance obligation
by transferring a promised service to the grantor. The Company’s performance creates
/enhances an asset that the grantor controls as the asset is created or enhanced hence, the
Company transfers control over time, satisfies a performance obfigation over time.

Transaction price (it does not involve significant financing component) is the price which is
contractually agreed with the customer for provision of services. Revenue is measured at the
transaction price that is aliocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounts

collected on behalf of third parties i.e GST and is adjusted for variable considerations.
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v. The nature of Company's contract gives rise to several types of variable consideration
including escalation and liquidated damages.

vi. Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated to the performance
obligations in the contract on the same basis as at contract inception.

vii. The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a
significant reversal in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The
company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using
the expecied value or most likely amount method whichever is betier predict the amount.

viii.  Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognised as
revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes.

ix. The company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes the revenue overtime, if any
of the following criteria is met:

= The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
entity’s performance as the entity perform.

s« The entity’'s performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in
progress) that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or

e The entity’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
entity and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

x.  For performance obligation satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done by
measuring the progress, using percentage completion method, towards complete
satisfaction of performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of
actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost atiributable to the performance
obligation.

xi. Performance obligation is measured by applying input method. In the contracts where
performance obligation cannot be measured by input method, the output method is applied,
which faithfully depict the Company’s performance towards complete satisfaction of the

g
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performance obligation.

xii.  Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved
either to the contract scope or contract price.

xiii.  The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added
to the existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price.
Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while
those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if
additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing
contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

xiv. Contract balances

+ Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
eamed consideration that is conditional

» Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of
consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required
before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial assets in section Financial instruments - initial recognition and
subsequent measurement.

« Contract liabilities: A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract

XV. Revenue from toll collection




The Company recognizes toil revenue as and when it collects at Transaction Price i.e usage fee.
Which is exclusive of amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

xvi.  Qther income

« Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

» Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method.

» Miscellaneous income is recognized when performance obligation is satisfied and
right to receive the income is established as per terms of contract.

2.11 Impaimment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the company assesses, whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’'s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment
loss, including impairment on inventories are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset's or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been
a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. The reversai is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior
period. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

2.12 inventories

Inventories (including scrap) are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on First in First out
(FIFO) basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.
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ii. Construction work-in-progress is valued at cost till such time the outcome of the job cannot
be ascertained reliably and at lower of cost or realizable value thereafter.

iii. The initial contract expenses on new projects for mobilization are recognized as construction
work-in-progress in the year of incidence, and pro rata charged to statement of profit and loss
of the project over the period at the same percentage as the stage of completion of the
contract as at the end of reporting period. Site mobilization expenditure 1o the extent not
written off valued at cost.

iv.  In Cost Plus contracts, where the cost of all materials, spares and stores not reimbursable as
per the terms of the contract is shown as inventory valued as per (a) above.

v. Loose tools are expensed in the period of purchase.

2.13 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
charged to statement of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjusiment to the borrowing costs.

214 Employee Benefits

i.  Short Term Employee Benefits

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and Performance Related
Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of
profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services.

i. Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits

The post employee henefits & other long term Empioyee Benefits are provided by Ircon
international Limited, the Holding Company, as the employees are on the deputation from the
Holding Company.

2.15 Leases

The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for
consideration.

Company as a lessee




The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The company recognizes lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

A. Right-of-use assets

« The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease
(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the tease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.Leasehold land acquired
on perpetual lease is not amortized.

« If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term
or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using
the estimated useful life of the asset.

« The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

B. Lease liahilities

« At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognizes lease liabilities
measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)
iess any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
ceriain to be exercised by the company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising the option to terminate.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

« In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-
measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease
payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or




rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an
option 1o purchase the underlying asset.

» The company's lease liabilities are included in financial liabilities.
C. Short term lease and leases of low value assets

¢ The company applies the shori-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leases contracts including lease of residential premises and offices (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or tess from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. The
Company furthe also treats those leases as low value, whose lease term may be
over one year, but whose effect of non categorizing them as right to use assets and
charging them over the lease term vis-&-vis accounting them as an expense on a
year to year basis is not material. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straighi-line basis over the lease
term.

« The company has given adjustments for lease accounting in accordance with Ind AS
116 which came into effect on 1 April 2019, and all the related figures have been
reclassified/ regrouped to give effect to the requiremenis of Ind AS 116.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of
profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

2.16 Curmrent income tax

= Currernt income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax
regulations. Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable
income for the period and is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations.
Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it
relates to items recognised outside profit or loss in which case it is recognized
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax




returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

» Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.17 Deferred tax

« Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date.

» Defetred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is setiled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

» Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it
relates to items recognised outside profit or loss, in which case is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

e Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

+ The camying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available 1o allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

2.18 Operating Segment

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided by
the chief operating decision maker (CODM). Company has identified only one reportable segment.

219 Earnings per Share

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period
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fii.

In determining diluted eamings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

2.20 Foreign Currencies

Functional and Presentation Currency

« Jtems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional and presentation
currency of the company.

Transactions and Balances

« Foreign currency fransactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange
rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

« Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are converted to functional
currency using the closing rate (Closing selling rates for liabilities and closing buying rate for
assets). Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical
cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

s Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting
date, at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These exchange differences are
presented in the statement of profit and loss on net basis.

2.21 Fair value measurement

The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability the principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants g
in their economic best interest.
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iv. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

v.  The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

vi.  All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

a} Level 1—Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

b) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

¢) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

vii.  For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

viii.  External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each
reporting date, the company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the company’s accounting policies.

ix. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

X.  Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

2.22 Dividend to equity holders

Annual Dividend distribution to the company’s equity shareholders is recognized as liabiiity in the
pericd in which dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend is recognized as
liability on approval by the Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend
distribution is recognized directly in equity.

2.23 Financial instruments

+ A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.




i. Financial assets
a) Initial recognition and measurement

* All Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction cost that
are directly attributable o the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss). Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

b) Subsequent measurement

= For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

A. Debtinstruments at amortised cost

e A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are
met:
a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and
b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

» After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

B. Debtinstruments at FVTOCI

s A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTQCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and
h. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

« Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as
at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of
profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest
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earmned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reporied as interest income in
statement of profit and loss using the EIR method.

C. Debtinstruments at FVTPL

a) FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL.

b) Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

D. Equity instruments

e All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

 [f the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVYTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of
investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

e Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

E. Impaiment of financial assets

» ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e.,
all cash shorifalls), discounted at the originai EIR.

+ In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and
credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

| ease receivables under Ind AS 116

Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial

asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

e. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL
AN I
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f. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on:

a. Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

b. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is
used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subseguent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial asset. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime
ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized
as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, ie., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The aflowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in
the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the
expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which
remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equa! to the allowance that would arise if the
asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other_comprehensive income as
the ‘accumulated impairment amount”
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s« The company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are ¢reditimpaired on purchase/ origination.

F. Derecognition of finanicial assets
a) A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks
and rewards of the ownership of the asset.

b) The difference between the carrying amount and the amouni of consideration received /
receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Financial liabilities
a) Initial recognition and measurement

« All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

« The company’s financial liabilittes include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings, other financial liabilities etc.

b) Subsequent measurement

+ The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

b. Financial liabilities at amortized cost

A. Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities

» After initial recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cosis that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of
profit and loss.

B. Derecognition of financial liabilities
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« A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS
109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

iv. Reclassification of financial assets

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. Such changes are evident
to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is
the first day of the immediately next reporting period foliowing the change in business model. The
company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses {including impairment gains
or losses) or interest.

v. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and seitle the liabilities
simultanecusly.

2.24 Non - current asset held for sale

a) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or
disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale
will be withdrawn, and sale is expected within one year from the date of the classification.
Disposal groups classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment, Investment property and intangible
assets are not depreciated or amortized once classified as held for sale. Assets classified as

held for sale/distribution are presented separately in the balance sheet.
GO«




b) If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale” are no longer met, the
disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of

i. its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for
depreciation that would have been recognized had that asset not been classified as
held for sale, and

ii. its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases to be classified as
held for sale.

The depreciation reversal adjustment related property, plant and equipment, Investment property
and intangible assets is charged to staiement of profit and loss in the period when non-current
assets held for sale criteria are no longer met.

2.25  Prior Period Adjustment

Errors/fomissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial
and adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed
0.50% of tota! operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company.

2.26 Significant accounting estimates and judgments

» The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously
evaluated by the company and are based on historical experience and various other
assumptions and factors (including expectations of fuiure events), that the company believes to
he reasonable under the existing circumstances.

* The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or
that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the
reporting date. Although the company regularly assesses these estimates, actual results could
differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such estimates were
reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other assumptions do
not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in the financial
statements in the period in which they become known.

* The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Actual
results could differ from these estimates.

i.  Allowances for uncollected trade receivables

e Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the
receivables balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems not be collectible. Z
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vi.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based
on all available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify
reliably and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although
there can be no assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is
involved. it is not expected that such contingencies s will have material effect on its financial
position of probability.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the company’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with  respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax
laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to
such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already
recorded. The company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of
such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and
differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.
Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the
conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF
maodel.

Non-current asset held for sale

77



vii.

viii.

« Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying

amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is
available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn,
and sale is expected within one year from the date of the classification.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - company as
Lessee

The company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or
any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The company
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement
date, the company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

Revenue recognition

The company’s revenue recognition policy, which is set out in Note 2.10, is central to how the
company values the work it has carried out in each financial year.

These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require
assessments and judgments to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations.

Estimates are also required with respect to the determination of stage of completion and
estimation of project compietion date:

e Determination of stage of completion
» Estimation of project completion date
« Provisions for foreseeable loses
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+ FEstimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and
variations.
« These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates

Revenue and costs in respect of contracts are recognized by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract activity at the end of reporting period, measured based on proportion of contract
costs incurred for work performed to the date relative to the estimated total contract costs, where
this would not be representative of stage of completion. Variations in contract work and claims are
included to the extent that amount can be measured reliably, and receipt is considered probable.
When it is probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognized as an expense immediately.
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED

Intangible Assets

(Rs. in crore)

Intangible assets Ini::il? E
Particulars under development ( Toll Road) Other Intangibles
(Toll Road) (Refer ( Software)
Note 24) (Refer Note
24)

Gross Block
Opening balance at 1 Aprii 2018 277.58 - -
Addition during the year 338.17 520.76 -
Capitalisation during the year 520.76 = -
Disposals / adjustment during the year ## 90.11 - -
Closing balance at 31 March 2019 4.88 520.76 -
Addition during the year 25.20 =
Capitalisation during the year -
Disposals / adjustment during the year #4# 13.15 -
Closing balance At 31 March 2020 16.94 520.76 -
## Equity Support due from NHAI to be reduced from in Intangible assets
Amortisation and Impairment
Opening balance at 1 April 2018 - -
Amortisation during the year = 277 -
Sales / adjustment during the year = .
Closing balance at 31 March 2019 - 277 -
Amortisation during the year = 23.03 -
Sales / adjustment during the year =
Closing balance At 31 March 2020 - 25.80 -
Net book value
At 31 March 2020 16.94 494.96 -
At 31 March 2019 4.88 517.99 =
Note:-

1. Intangible Assets (Toll Road) also includes value of IT Infrastructure Including software essential for the toll road and bundled with
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51

Nobn-Current Asseis - Other Financial Assets

IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED

{Rs. in crore)
As at 315t
Particulars As at 315t March 2020 March 2019
a) Considered Guod : Unsecured
Security Deposils
- Others 0.04 0.04
Contact Asset:
= Retention Money with Client (Refer Note 34) 496 0.96
Total (2) 100 1.00
b} Considered Doubiful
Tatal - Other Financial Assets - Doubtful (I} - -
Grand Total - Other Financiel Assets (a+b) 100 1.08
G
<, *
< - !
VLS
- 5 _DE\' 5
4‘?4’ QPQ
7ERED IS
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IRCON PB TOLEWAY LIMITED

6 Deferred Tax Assels and Jacome Tax
Digclosure pursyant to nd AS 12 “Income Taxes™

{®) The majer components of income tsx expense for the year ended 3t March 2020 and 31 March 2019 are :

(B, in crore}
5.No.{ Particulars For the Year ended
st March 2020 31st March 2019
1 [Profit and Loss Section
Curent income tax £
Current income tax charge - -
Adjustment in respect of curreat tax of previous year 001 B
Deferced tax :
Relating to origination and seversal of temporary differences - (0.71)
Tn¢ome bix exp { 1n the Profit and Loss section 001 (0.7T1)
2 |Otber Comprehensive lucome (OC3) Section
Income {ax related to items recognised in OCT during the year:
Net loss/(gain} on remeasuzements of defined benefit plans - -
Not loss/(gain} on foreign operation translation - -
Income tax expense reported in the OCE section - -
(b) Reconcilintion of tax exp and the ing profit d by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2020 aod 31 March 281%:
(Rs. in crore)
§.No.{ Particalars For the Year ended
313t March 2020 31st March 2019
1 jAccounting profit befere income tax {17.18} (2.83)
2 {Corporate tax tate zs per Income tax Act, 1961 26% 26%
3 |Tax on Accoumting profit (3= {2 * (2) - -
4 ]Effect of Tax Adjustments:
(i) |Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 001 -
(i) |Utilisation of previously unrecognised fax losses - -
(iit) {dmpact of Rate Difference - -
(iv) | Tax on Income exempt from tax - -
{v} |MNen-deductible expenses for fax purposes:
-Other country additional tax - -
-Othey pon-dedugtible expenses = =
{vi) [Tax effect of varigus piher jtems - 0.71)
5 |Ineome tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.61 £0.71)
6 |Effective Tax Rate
{c} Components of deferred tax (asseis) and Lisbilities d in the Skeet and § of Profit or Loss
{Rs. in erore)}
S.No.| Particnlars Bl sheet of profit or loss
315t March 2020 31st March 2019 s March 2020 31st March 2019
1 :lom._let &_Equipmeui (mclutii:}g intengible}: Difference in book (@.54) _ a5.34) _
epreciation and income tax depreciation A
2 | Provisions - - - -
3 | Others/ Business Loss A0.65 0.81 39.84 0.71
4 | Items disallowed w's 43B of Iscome Tax Act, 1061 - - - -
5 | Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and Joss in the
carrent year and earlier years but allowable for tax purg onp - - - -
basis
% | Fair of finaneial i - - - -
7 | Unutilised gain/toss on FVTOCT equity securities and FYTPL Mutual | ] ] ~
fands
Net deferred tax assets/(linbilities) 0.81 8.81 - 0.71 |
 Daferred Tax Assels arising on account of Business losses has been resiricted to the Deferred Tax Liabllity arising from PPE ard Intongible Assets as o malier of eonservatisim.
Digferred Tex asset of Rs .46 Crores has not been d as a maiter of p. , i fine with policy .17
() Reflected In the balance sheet as folows:
{Rs. in crore)
| 8.No.| Particulare 3ist March 2020 31st March 2012
1 |Defemed tax assets 40.65 0.81
2 |Defemed tax liability {39.84) =
Deferred Taz Asset/{Linbilities) (Net) 0.81 0.81
Note: Defenred tax assets and deferved tax liabilities have been offset as they relate to the same governing laws.
{¢) Reconcilintion of deferred tax (linbilities)/ssseis:
Az at 31 March 2020 (Rs. in crure)
8.No.| Particalars Bal gnised in gnised in OCT Balsnce
Asat st April |siatement of profit Az ut A1ut March,
2019 (Net) and loss 2020 (Net)
1 {Peoperty, Plant & Equi; (ineledi gibie): Difference in book
depreciation and income tax depreciaifon h (30.54) b A2:3)
2 | Provisions - - - =
3 { Others/ Business Loss 0.81 3084 - 40.65
4 | Ttems dizallowed w/s 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 E - - G
5 | Impact of expenditure charged to the staternent of profit and loss in the
current yeur and earlier years hut allowable for tax purposes on payment - - -
hasis -
6 | Foir valuation of financial instruments - - -] =
7 | Unutilised painfloss on FYTOCK equity sscuritics and FYTPL Mutual ] . B
funds S
Net deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 0,81 - - 081
As at 31 March 2019 {Rs. in crore}
£.No.| Particnlars Bal Reeognised in Recogrised in OCI Balance
Asat Ist April  statement of profit As at 31st March,
2015 (Net) aad loss 2019 (Net}
1 |Propeniy, Plani & Equipment (including intengible): Difference in book
depreciation and income lex depreciation " B " h
2 | Provisions 9.00 - - =
3 | Others/ Business Lasg .19 07 - 0.51
4 | lems disallowed /s 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 200 0.00 - -
5 | lmpact of expenditure charged 1o the statement of profi1 and Joss in the
cutrent year and carlier years but allowable for tax parposes on payment 0.00 = = =
basis
Fair val of fi sal i 000 0.00 = =
7 | Unutilised gainficss on FVTOCT equity securities and FVTPL Mutual 0.00

funds

Net deferred tax assets/(Habillities)




7.1

Current Assets - Financial Assets

Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables

{Rs. in erore)
Particulars As at 31st March 2020  As at 31st March 2019
Considered Good : Unsecured 9.66 15.15
Considered Doubitful : Unsecured - -
Less : Impairment allowances for doubtful debts - -
Total 9.66 15.15
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{RCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED

7.2 Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash equivalents
{Rs. in crore)
Particulars Fout Note As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019
Balances with banks:
—On corrent accounts™ 1,11 0.44
—Flexi Accounts”® 11.65 0.85
12.76 1.29

# The above balance pertain to ESCROW A/C which are earmarked fund as per concession agresment entered with NHAIL

7.3 Current Financial Assets - Loans
(Rs. in crore}
Particulars As at 315t March 2020 Ag at 315t March 2019
(i) Others:
Staff Loans & Advances - -

Total {B) - Considered Good : Unsecured (i)

C. Considered Dounbtful
Total {(C) - Doubiful Loans - -

Total

85



(PIgcaeN 1ejay) poddng Annbg e TVHN wog anp (501010 [5°Z0T JBIX SROIASIT) S9I070) +6°9F "SI SIPN[IM S[qBI0A0021 ) (B)

10N

8LTIT

119

&)oL

06'TLL

880

£T0¢S

880

200

PRANIS[) : INJ3GNO( PIIPISUD;)
SIQO
: J[QRISADIOY IO

ORI T ABUOTN UOHURIY -

(anjea a{qesieaI 1v) sseIfol U Y10, BONILNSHOL) -
(i€ 30N 39703 yua1];) Aq ployUIL M ASUOT

{(11) s10w 1007 J9]51} ONP J0U AQRAIIISY ; INHIAZY S[qBId ~
1 JASSY JIR[UO))

syued ypks sysodog -

! U0 PanInoy 1Salapi]

AL Y APTOIN UONTSITY
PAINIISUL) - POOL) PoLoPISUT,)

6TOT HOTETAT ISTE 18 S

0707 I ISTE 16 5V

sIe[non.Ie g

(31043 m 5y)

SI3SEV [eIouBul] 90 - SIFFSY JUILIN)
QALTINI'T AVATIOL 94 NOOYIX

¥

86



TRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED
8 Current Assets - Current Tax Assets (Net)

(Rs. in crere)

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Taxes Paid including TDS & Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Tax) 6.78 448
Current tax Assets (Net) 6.78 448
Current Tax Assefs (Net)
{Rs. In crore)

Particulars Foot Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Taxes Paid :
Income Tax - TDS N -
Advance Income Tax 6.78 4.48
Depaosit with Income Tax Department against demand - -
Less : Provision for Tax - -

Total 6.78 4.48
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IRCON FB TOLLWAY LIMITED

5 Other Corrent Assels

(B3, lngrore}
9 As at 315t Ad 3L 315t March
Protiealan Feat Note Miarek 2020 2015
Consldered Good : Unsecured
Advances Other than Capital Advances
- Goods & Serviees Tax - 245
Prepaid Bxpenses - 0.14
Cousidered Doubtfat : U 1 R R
Total - 2.59

v
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(=)

b)

IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED

Equity Share capital
(Rs. in crore)
+ As At31 March  Asat31 March
Fericoiars 2020 2019
Authoiised Share Capital
17,50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each 175.00 175,00
175.00 175.00
Issued/Sabscribed snd Pald wp Capital
1€,50,00,000 Equity shares of Ks 10 each-fully paid 165.00 165.00
165.00 165.00
Details of shareholders helding more than 5% shares in the Company
As At 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
N. { the sharehold P -
ame of the shareholder No. of Share % holding in the No, of Share % holding in the
class class
Ircon International Limited- Holding Company ( 165,000,000 100.00% 163,060,000 100.00%
IRCON)
R iliatien of the ber of equity shares and share capltal ontstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As At31 March 2020 As at 3 March 201%
FArteniars No of shares Rs in crore No of shares Rs In crore
Issued/Subscribed and Paid wp equity Capital
ding at the beginming of the year 165,000,000 165.00 165,000,000 165.00
Add: Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Less: Shares Buy Back during the yesr - - - -
Tsszed/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital
outstanding at the end of the year 165,000,000 165.00
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IRCON PE TOLLWAY LIMITED

12  Non-Current Liabilifies - Financial Liabilities

12,1 Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Borrewings
(Rs. In crore)

Particolars As at 315t March 2020 As at 31st March 2019

Secared:
(a) Loan from Holding Company(Ircon International Limited)

(Refer Note below & 13.1) SH2) 80270

Total 37198 309.70

Notes ;-
(a) Details of Terms of repayments for the other short terms borrowings and security provided in respect of other secured long term borrowings:-

Particulars and terms of security As at 31s5¢ March 2020 As at 31st March 2019

IRCON International Limited (Secured Loan)-Secured by all immovable properties and
hypothecation of moveable property of the borrower, Fees, Revenuve, Project Apreement, Insurance 417.22 337.85
Claim, Intangible Assets, ESCROW Account and other assets (Refer note b below)

Less : Current Maturities (Amount re- payable in next financial year ) Shown under note 13.1 -

. e By l 37.93 28.15
Financial Liablities Current Borrowing
Amonnt Quistanding 379.2% 309.70

{b)  As per the sanction terms of the loan taken ffom IRCON International Limited , the interest payable is equivalent to SBI Base rate +0.50%, which presently is
8.65% p.a. payable monthly. Company has already approved in their 41st board meeting dated 18.5.2020 for change in repayment schedule to 15 vears in
structured quarterly instalments with the next instalment starting from 1.4.21 . The interest rate of loan is also being revised to SBI MCLR rate for one year
including deferment of interest payment on the loan wpto 31.3,2020. The Request for amendment in the holding company in this regard has alreddy been made.
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TROON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED

Cuwrrent Liabilitfes = Financia] Llabitises

Current Financial Linbllities - Borrowings

(Rs. fn crore)
Particolars Az at 315t biarch 2020 Asg ut 313f March 2019
(A) Loan From Holding Cempany - IRCON 37.93 28.15
Tatal 37.93 3815
Crrrent Financiz] Liab/lities - Trade Payables
(Rs. n crore}
Partirulary As nt 31et March 2020 As at 31st March 2039
(A) Micro, Small & Medium Enlerpriscs - -
(1) Othes than Micre, Small & Medium Eaterpriscs
() Conlractor & Suppliers 220 124
(1) Related Parties 481 141
Total 701 2.65
MNotes:
a) Disclosures as required under Companies Act, 2013 / Micro, Small and Medium Baterprises Developmenl Act,2006 {MSMED) are provided in Note 36,
b) Tesms end Conditions and other balances with relsted parties are disclosed in Note 29
Corrent Liabilittes = Dikier Finauelal Edabifitles
{Rs. in crore)
Particulars As at 315t Mareh 2010 As at 315t March 2019
Diher Payahles (including Staff Payzble} 452 106
Lease Lishility = 5
Total 432 A 106
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED
14  Other Current Liabilities

(Rs. in crore)
Particulars As at 31st March 20280 As at 31st March 2019
a) Others
Statuiory dues 0.12 242
Total 0.12 2.42
Notes:

a) Statutory dues includes liability for Goods and Service Tax (GST), TDS, Provident Fund and other statutory dues.
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED

15 Provisions

(R, in crore)
Particulars Foot Note 31 Msrch 2026 31 March 2019
Provision for Employee Benefits p -
Other Provisions 15.1 15.67 150.21
Total 15,567 150.21
Cuperent 15.67 150.21
MNon Curment - -
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151

{ther Provisions :

Particulars

Mai

(Rs. in crore

Total

As af 31-March-2018
Current
Non Carrent

Provision made during the year
Less: Utilization during the year
Less: Write Back during tha year
(Exchange Gain) / Loss

Unwinding of discount

As 5t 31-March-2019

Current

Non Current

Provision made during the year
Less: Utilization during the year
Less: Write Back daring the year

As at 31-March-2020
Current
Non Current

150.21

150.21

150.21
2432
(15936}

150.21

24.82
-13%.36

15.67

1567

95
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Revenue from Operations

IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED

(Rs. in crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Construction Coniract revenue under SCA (Refer Note 24) 25.20 351.33
Reverniue from Toll Operations {Refer Note 24 & 34) 45.20 4.74
Other QOperating Revenue 0.01 -
Total 70.41 356.07
Other Income
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Interest Income :
Bank Interest Gross
Less:- Interest Passed to Clients 0.31 0.73
Others :
Miscellaneous Income 0.02 0.09
Total 0.33 0.82
pa!
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IRCCN PB TOLLWAY LIMITED

Employee Remuneration and Benefits

(Rs. in crore
Foot For the year ended For the year ended
Particolars N:‘:e 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Project Exp Other Exp Total Project Expenses | Other Exp Total
Salaries, Wages and Bomus 242 - 242 2.36 - 2,36
Coniribution to Provident and Other Funds a0.15 - 6.15 0.14 - 0.4
Foreign Service Contribution - = = 3 = =
Retirement Benefits 0.25 - 6.25 0.29 - 0.29
Staff Welfare - = E = R g
Total 2,82 - 282 2.79 - 2.7%
Foot Notes:-
{1} Refer note 29 for detalls of r ation to Di s and Key Manap Personnel.
Firance Cosits
{Rs. in crore)
o Foot For the year ended For the year ended
ek Note 315t March 2020 31st March 2019
Interest Expense { Refer nate no. 38(k)) 19,94 2322
Less:- Interest earned on Loan funds - 1994 0.01 2521
{ther Borrowing Cost
- Bank Guarantee & Other Charpes g0l 0.0l
Total 19,95 25.22
Depreciation, Amoertisation and Impairment
(Rs. In
crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
Farticulars 318t March 2020 31st March 2019
Depreciation of Property, Plant and equipment 0.01 -
Depreciation of Right to Use - Lease Asscls - -
Amortization of Intangible Assets 23.03 277
Depreciation of Investment Properiy - -
Total
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Note:-22

IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN - U45400DL2014G01272220)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Detalls of Related Party Transactions during the year
{ Rs. in Cr.}
QOutstanding Amount
Name of Related For the year For the year For the year
Particul
Party areear ended 31st March | ended 31st March|ended 31st March F;;;h;:fa; ::::d
2020 2019 2020 <
investrnent in Equity 165.00 165.00
Loan  Draw } 136.89 97.00 417,22 337.85
IRCON {H.Q.) Loan {Repayment) 57.52
Interest On Loan 19.94 25.21
Other Payables 0.22 0.80
IRCON {Project } Other Payables - Project 4.81 1.41
Rendering of services
IRCON [H.0.) Rent { excl GST) 0.02 .02
Works Contract { excl GST) 135.61 154.91
IRCON [Project ) Utility shifting { excl G5T) -
[ 1)
2l
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IRCON PE TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN - U45400D1.2014G01272226)
Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020

Note:~ 24 Service Concession Arvangements (SCA) to Ind AS-115-"Revenue from Confract with castomers"
Publicta-private service concession arrangements are recorded in accordance with Appendix "C"- Service Concession Arrangements o Ind AS-115-"Revenue
from Coniract with custoraers”. This SCA is falling within this appendin’s scope as both the conditions sct out below are met:

a)  The Grantor controis or regulates which services the operator must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what price; and

b)  The granior controis- through ownership, beneficial entitlement, or otherwise- any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of
the arrangement.

An intangible assel is recognized to the extent that the operator receives the right to charge users of the public service, provided that these charges ave conditional
on the degree to which the service is used.

These intangible assets are initially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service provided plus other direct costs directly astributable to
the operation. They are then amertized over the term of the concession.

Ircon PB Tollway Limited (IPBTL} {the operator) has entered into a service concession armmpement with National Highway Authority of India (NHAT) dated 7th
November 2014 in ternss of which NHAI (the granter) has authorized the corpary 10 develop, finance, design, engineer, procure, construct, operaie and maintain
the Project of four laning of Bikaner Palaudi Section and to exereise and/or enjoy the rights, powers, benefits, privileges authorizaticns and entitlements upon its
completion. In terms of the said agreement IPBTL has an obligation fo complete construction of the project of four laning of Bikaner Paleudi section and to keep
the project assets in proper working condition inciuding all projects nssets whose lives have expired.

The Corcession period shall be 26 years commencing from the appointment date which is 14th October 2015, At the end of the concession period, the assets will
be transferred back to National Highway Authority of India (NHAT). In case of material breach in termns of agreement the NHAI and Ircon PBTL have right to
terminate the agreement if they are not able to cure the event of defauli in accordance with such agreement.

The Company recognizes revenue and cosi in accordance with Ind AS 115 by reference to the construction's stage of completion. The Company measures
cantract revenue at the fair value of the consideration receivable. During the arrangement's construction phase, the Company's assets of 520.76 crores
(ropresenting s accumulating right to be paid for providing construction services minus the Equity support due from NHAI) is classified as an intangihle assets
(license to charge user of the infrastructure). SInce the provisional COD has been received on 15.02.19 for 95.96% physical completion, Intanpible asset has been
created upto that extent. Rs 16.93 Crores is lying as Intangible Assets under development as on 31.03.20. The Company has recognized revenue of Rs. 25.20
Crores  on construction of intangible assets wnder service corcession agreement for the financial year upto 31.03.20. The Company has recognized nil profit
on construction of intangible assets under service lon arr t Ther recognized in relation o construction of inlangible assets under
service concession arrangement represents the fair value of services pmwded towards construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement,

The operation of toll read has commenced from 15th Feb 2019 afier 95.96% physical completion of the Toll Road , and the during the year company has
recopnised usage fee as revenue of Rs. 4520 Crores { Previons Year - Rs 4.74 Cr) from operation of totl roads.

Usage fee collected aver and above the traffic cap as per the concession agreement is termed as excess fee. Since the Toll Roed has not yer been 100%
completed and tmpact of excess fee at present is not ascertainable, no provision or assessment of the same hus been done .

Construction Contracts
In terms of the disclosure required in ind AS -115 "Revenue from Contract with Customers" , the amount considered in the financial statements wp to the balance
sheet date are as follows:-

Amount in Rs Creres

Partieulars 31-03-20 31-03-1%
Revenue recognized from construction services 2520 351.33
Revenue recognised from toll-Usage fee 45.20 4.74
Aggrepate amount of cost incurred and recognized in Profit/Loss 2520 35133
Gross amounit due from Client for Contract Works 9.66 15.15

Note 24 (b): As per Concession Agreement entered with NHAI Company need to under take the work of shifting of utility including electricity lines, water pipes
and telephone cables, if such utility cause a material adverse effect on the construction, operation and maintenance of the preject . The cost of shifting of such
utility shall be born by the Anthority (NHAT) or by the entity owning the utility.

Cormnpany has subcontracted the entire work of utility shifting to Ircon International Limited (IRCON) on back to back basis after approval from NHAI Amount
yet 1o be received from NHAT to the tune of 2.71 erores & shown under Other financial assets cwrent . Refer note 7.4
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Note:- 25

Note:- 26
(a}

(b}

()

TRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Disclosure as required by Ind AS 1 "Py ion of Fi ial § i
Changes tnn significant accounting policies;-
Policy 2.15'Leases" has been modified in the significant accounting policies due 1o the applicability of Ind AS 116 "Leases".

Ind A5 116 was notified with effect from Aprif 1, 2089 which replaces Ind AS 17. Ind AS [16 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosurc of leases and requires lessees o recognise most leases on the balance sheet,

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as gither operaling or finance
leases using similar principles as in Tnd AS 17, Therefore, Ind AS 116 did not have an impact for leases where the Company is the lessor,

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial application of April 1, 201%. Under
this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initinlly applying the standard recognised at the date of initial
application. The Company elected to ase the trapsition practical exy oot tor whether cenfract is or contains Tease at April 03,
2019. Instead, the Company applied the standards only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17.

The effect of adoption Ind AS 116 as at April 04 2019 (increase/(decrease)) is as follows:
{Rs. in crore)

Assets Amount

Right-of-use assets 5

Property, plani and equi -

Prepayments -

Totsl assets =

Liabdities

Financial linbilities - Lease liabilities =
Totak Habilities =

The Company has lease contracts for Remted office premises only. These leases are cither below 12 months or of fow value. Before the adoption of
Ind AS 116, the Company classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either & finance lease or an operating lease. Upon adoption
of Ind AS 116, the Company applied a single recopnition and measurement approach for all leages except for short-term Ieases. Refer to Note xx for
the accounting policy on Ind AS 116, The standand provides specific transition requirements and practical expedients, which have been applied by the
Company.

Leases previonsly classified as finance leases
The Cempany did not have any finance leases.

Leases previonsly acconnted for as operating leases

The Company recognised right-of-use asscts and lease linbilitics for those leases previously classified as operating ieases, except for short-term leases
and operating lenses classified as low value'. The lesses recognizes a lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application and correspondingly measured the right-of-use assct at sn
amount equal o the lease liability, adjusted for previously recognized prepaid or accrued lease payments.

The Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it;
(i) Used a single discount rate to a porifolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

(ii) Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with Jease term that ends within 12 menths of the date of initis] application and the total lease
term is kess than 12 months and alse those feases that ave essential termed as Tow value',

{iii} Excluded the initial direct costs fromn the measurement of the right-ofuse asset at the date of initial application.

(iv) Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained options lo extend or terminaie the lease
The lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 can be reconciled to the operating lease commitments as of March 31 2019 is es follows:

{Rs, in crore)
Particolars As at April 01, 2019
Assets
Operating lease itrsents as at Mareh 31, 2019 -
‘Woighted ge 1 borrowing rate as at April 01, 2019 3
Discomnted operating leass commitments as at April 01, 2019 -
Less:
Commitments relating to short-ferm leases d
Add:
Lease payments relating to renewal periods not inciuded in operating lease ;
comu as at March 31, 2019
Lease liahilities as at April 01, 2012 8,00

Disclosure as required by Ind AS 8 ""Accouuting Policies, Changes in Acctunting Estimates and Errors"
During the year the Company has changed the accounting poficy releted to "Prior Period Tiemns”. It has been decided to adjust the immaterial prior
period items in the current year.

The financial statements line items for the year ended 31 March 2020 which were affected by the change in acecunting policy was NIL.
Certain reclassifications have been made to the comparative period’s financial statements to echange comparability wnh !he corrent year's financial
statements. These reclassifications have no effect on the reported resuits of operations.

Previous year figures are shown under bracket () ta differentiate from current year figures.
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2620

Note:- 27 Employece Benefits
Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits" are as under:

The employees working for IrconPBTollwayLimited (IPBTL) are posted ont deputation / secondment and are on the rolls of Ircon
International Limited, the Holding Company. Their PF contributicns, pension contributions, gratuity, leave encashment and other
retirement benefits have been accounted for on the basis of invoices / debit advises from its holding company. The provision for gratuity
and other retirement benefits of employees on deputation in terms of IND AS-12 is being made by its Holding Company as per its
accounting pelicies.

Provident fund contribution and pension conttibution of the employees on deputation has been regularly deposited by the holding
company with its P. F. Trust.

Note:- 28 (a)

Foreign exchange recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

{Rs. in crore)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31ist March 2020 31st March 2019
Profit or Loss
Other Comprehensive Income
Total = =
(b) Earnings in foreign currency (on accrual basis):
(Rs. in crore)
Particuiars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
‘Work Receipts & Locomotive lease
Bank Interest
Other Interest
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain (Net)
Others
Total = 7
(¢) Expenditure in foreign currency (om accrual basis):
{Rs. in crore)
farCeulans For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2620 31st March 2019
Operational Expenses
Consultancy charges
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss (MNet)
Total - =
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED

Notes to Finnncial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note:- 29 Related Party Transactions

Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures” are 85 under:

a) List of Related Parties

(i) Holding Compzny
Ircon International Limited

(if) Non-Executive Directors
Name Designati
Shri Deepak Sabhlok Chairman (upto 31st October 2019)
Stui Shyam Lal Gupta_ Chalrman (w.e.f, 1st November 2018)
Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal Director
Shri Rajendra Singh Yadav Director
Shri Anand Kumar Singh Director {upio 4th September 2019)
rMs. Anupam Ban Director {uplo 30th August 2019)

|Ms, Bhuvaneshwari Knistman

Director {w.e.f. 19th September 2019)

* All the Directors are Part-Time (Nomines) Direcfors nominated by the holding Company {i.e. Ircon International

Limited).

[

Cther Members dentified as Koy Management Personnel { KMF)

Name Besig
Shri Atul Kurar Chief Executing Officer
{upto Bth April 2019)
Shri Mahendra Kumar Sharma Chief Executing Officer
(w.e.f. DB/D4{209 upto 31st May 2019}
Shri Atul Kumar Chief Execuling Officer
(re-appointed w.e.f. 31st May 2018)
Shri Sanjay Poddar Chief Financial Officer
{upto 10th October 2019}
Shri Bhushan Kumar Chief Financial Officer
(upte 3rd February 2020)

Shri Manjur Mohammad Gouri

Chief Financial Officer
{w.e.f. 18th March 2020)

Company Secretary

MName Designati

Ms. Sudhodhani Company Secreiary
{Up to 31st Cct 2019)

Ms. Anuradha Kaushik Company Secrelary

{w.ed, 31st January 2020)

108




b)

IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED

Notei to Financial Statenients for the year ended March 31, 2020

Transactions with Key M Personnel (KMP) of the Company are 25 follows: (Rs. in crore)
For the year ended | For the yesr ended
S.No. |Parilealsrs
i 315t March 2020 315t March 2019
i Short term employee benefits 0.59 2 55‘
2 |Post employment benefits 0.08 0.08
3 Other long-term employee benefits o.01 001
4 |Termination benefits 0.00 0.00
3 Sitting fees 2.60 0.00
Total 1.68 0.75
Transactions with other related parties are as fellows: (Rs. in crore)
S.Ne. [Nature of transaction Name of related party Nature of relationship F;; :;;::; ;;:;d F:;:?]:Ii::; ;:':;d
1 Sate of goods and services
1.1 {Contract Revenue Ircon International Lmited Holding Company
1.2 1Rent Income Ircon International Lmited Holding Cempany
21 {Purches: of geods and services Ircon International Lmited Holding Company 135.61 154.91
1 E
3 B L Stal Exp » Rent Ircon International Lmited Holding Company G.62 0.62
4.1 iinterest Expenst on Loan Ircon Intemational Linited Holding Comp 19.94 25.21,
5 Repayment of Loans Ircon Intemational Lmited Holding Company 57.52 -
6 {Advances /Loans Received Ircon Intemnational Lmited Holding C 136.89 97.60
7 {Any Other transzction not covered shove
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TRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes tg Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1] ding bal with the related partics are as follows: (Rs. in crore)
Asal Asat

8.No. Nsture of transaction Name of related party Nature of relationship 315t Mareh, 2026 st March, 2019
1  |Equity Received ( Lisbility} Treon Fnfernational Limited Holding Company 165.00 16500
5  |Borrowings Ircon Enternational Linsited Holding Cougany 417.22 337.85

& | Amount Payable towards

6.1 jTrade Payables Ircon ndernational Limited Holding Company 4.81 141
6.8 |Otker Paysbles Treon Internations] Limited Holding Conp 0.22 0.80

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
(i}  Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivaleni to those that prevail in arm’s ength kransaclions.
(i}  Outstanding balances of related partics at the yoar-ond are vasecured and selllement occurs through banking iransaclions. These balances other than loans and intersst bearing advances are interest frec.
(ifi)  The loans to key management personnel arg oa the same termns and conditions as appliceble to sl other employecs.
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Note:- 32 Provisions, Contingenci

IRCON PE TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statemaents for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note:- 30 Earnings Per Share

Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 'Eamings per share’

Basic EP5S is celeulated by dividing the profic for the year sttributable to eguity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year atieibutable to the equity holders after consideting the effect of ditvtion by weiphted average number of equity shares ontstanding during the year plus the

weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potentie] squity shares into equity shares.

(i) Basic and diloted earnings per share (in Rs.)

Particularsy Note For the year |For the vear
ended 31st  |ended 31st
March, 2620 |March, 2019
Profit stiributable to Equity holders (Rs. in crore) {ii) -17.18 -2.11
‘Weighted everape number of equity shares for Basic and Dileted EPS (il) 17 17
[Earnings per share {Basic} =1.04 =0.13
Eamnings per share (Diluted) -1.04 0.13
Face value per share 30.00 10.00
(if} Profit attribntable to equity shareholders (used as nomerator) (Rs. in crore)
Porticulars For the year | For the year
ended 318t | ended 31st
March, 2020 | March, 2019
Profit for the year as per Statement of Profil and Loss -17.18 -2.11
Profit atteibutable to Equity holders of the company used for computing EPS: -17.18 =2.11
(ifi) Weighted xverape mumber of equity shares (used as d i ) (Nos.)
Particnlars For the year | For the year
ended 315t | ended 318t
Mareh, 2020 | March, 2019
Opening balance of issued equity shares 16.50 16.50
Equity shures issued during the year - -
‘Weighted averape ber of equity shares for computing Basic EPS 16.50 16.50
Dilution Effeci:
Add: Weighted B hers of potential eguity shares Jing during the year - -
Weighted avernge of equity shares for Dilated EPS 16.50 16,50

Note:- 31 Impairment of Assets

In compliance of Ind AS 36 "Impairment of Assets", the Company has reviewed the assets at year-end for indication of Impairment loss, if any, as per the acconnting policy of the

Cormpany. As there is no indication of impairment, no impairment loss has been recognised during the year.

and C

{i) Provisions

The nature of provisions previded and movement in provisions during the year as per Ind AS 37 *Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and € Assets” ara disclosed in Note-15
{i) Contingent Lisbilities
Disclosure of Costingent Liabilitics as per Ind AS 37 *Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Costingent Asgets’ is as under:-
(Rs. in crore)
Particudary Faot As 3t 31at Addition Cinims settied during the year As at 3st
Note | March 2019 during the March 2020
year Dutofthe (Outof ‘Total Claims
opening addition Settled during
balance during the  [the year
year
2) |Claims against the Company net acknowledged as debis : - - - 2 o R
b) |Guarantees (excloding G ial g ) issued by the y on behslf of - - - - - -
t) |Other money for which is contl Hable ~ - = - - -
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{ili} Commiiments

(Rk. in crorc)
Particulars Foot Note As at 31st March 2020 As at 315t March 2019
#)_{Capital Commitments
Estimeted emount of contracts 19 be d on gapital Bocount (net of agvance) and not provided for: El 2397 214.55
| B) |Other Commitments
(i} |Funding committed by way of ecuity and loans in Subsidiary Companies 2 0.00/ 0.60
(ii) |Funding commiited by way of equity and loans in Joint Venture Compenies 3 0.00 0.60
{iii} | Counter Bank G for Subsidiary Compani 4
There are certain cluims against the Company not acknowledged as debt ofRs. 7.20crore (Rs. 7.20crore} net of provisions
of Rs. NILcrore (Rs.NILcrors), Due to eperational issues (delay in approval of drawings, demand of local villagers, utility
shifting, land scquisition and availability, forest clearance etc.), there are detays in achieving project milestone. Company
bas filed 3 request to NHAI for modification of matlestone tirelines under clanse 12,4.2 of the concession sgreement
without damage / finencial implication on part of the company. Company has received an intimation from the Independent
Engineer regarding the delay in achieving milestone. Fusther, NHAT has deducted a sum of Rs, 7,20 Crores on account of
damages uptod]stMarch 2020 (Rs, 7.20 Crs till 315t March 201%). The Company is siready d 1o NHAI that
delay is not stiributable to IPBTL. Hence, IPBTL has not recognized clzim against the delay 25 a liability or 2 contingent
Eiability,
| Amount of Rs, 7,20 Crs is considered pood as other receivables under other finrncial assets- current and is el to be
received from / confirmed by NHAT
2.77 114,55
Feot Note:
(Rs. in crorc)
1 [S.No|Capital C: i As 7f 318t March 2020 As at 315t March 2019
1 |Esti d amount of 1o be executed on Property, Plant and Equipment
2 |Esti l smount of contracts to be executed on I Property
3 |Esti d emount of T to be executed on Intangible Assets under development 277 214.55
Total 2.7 214.55
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TRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED

Notes to Financisl Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note - 33 Segment Reporting

Disclosure as per Ind AS 108 " Operating Segment” is given as under;

A. General informatien

Opersting segments are definsd as compenents of an enterprise for which discrete financinl information is available which is being evaluaied regularly by the Chief Operating Decision

10

Maker (CODM) in deciding how 1o

f and

g perfe

The Board of Directors of the Company is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The operating

segments have besn reported in a manner consistent with the internel reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Meker (CODM) for review of performance and allocating resourves.

The Company has determined reportable operating segments fram geographical perspective.

B. Information shout reportable segments and reconciliation te

flected in the fi 201

{Rs. in crore}
Particulars Tnteroationsi Domestic Total
For the year ended | For the yearended | Fortheyesrended | For the year ended | For the vesrended | For the year ended
315t March 2020 315t March 2019 31st March 2020 31st March 2019 31st March 2029 31at March 2019
Segement Revenae
Revenue from external 7041 356.07 70,41 35607
Add : Company's share of tumover in - -
integrated joint operations
Total Opersiing Revenue - - 7041 356.07 70.41 356.07
Interest income 1%} .73 031 0.73
Other Income 0.02 0.09 0.02 0.09
Inter - segment - =
Toial Revenue - = 7074 356.89 70.74 35689
|Segement Result
Profit before provision, depreciation, - - 160.36 (181.02) 169.36 f181.02)
interest and exceptional item and tax
Less: Provisons and write back {134.54) 150.21 {134.34) 150.21
Less: Depreciation,amortization and 23.04 .77 23.04 277
Less: Interest 19.95 2522 19.95 2522
Profit before tax {17.17) {2.82) 17.17) (2.82)|
Pess: Tax (0.01) 0.7 (0.01) 0.71
Profit afier tax - - {17.18) (2.11) {17.18) (z.11)
C.Other Information
(Rs. in crove)
Partlculars International Domestic Total
For the yeur ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
3ist March 2020 31st March 2019 31s¢ March 2020 31st March 2019 31st March 2620 J1st March 2019
Total Asssts 594.17 661,00 594,17 661.00
Total Liabikities 444.54 494.19 444.54 494.1%
Investment in joint ventures accounted
for by equity method
Non current asset other than financial
instraments, deferred tax assets, net
defined benefit assets - = 3 o
Capital Expenditure for the year
ending (Addition to PPE, CWIP,
Investment Property, Other Intangible
Assets, Intangible assets under
development and Right-to-use)* 12,07 24806 12.17 248,06

*The Capital expenditure amount is net of Equity cash support given by NHAT (Refer note 4)

D. Information about major castomer

The Cempany is engaged in the business of consiruction , operation , maintenance of Toll Road and ils major zevenue is from the collection of the Toll Procesds frgm the vehicles that use
the said Toll Road. Approximately 63.53% ( 1.33%) of the revenue has arisen from these during the period ended March 31, 2620, in the Domeslic Segmen oni
36.44% ( 98.66%) revenue is for comstruction of Toli Road under service conecssion agreement with NHAT.
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ICON FB TOLLWAY LIMITED
Neted to Flnancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Noter- 34 THuwlosure a5 required by Ind AS 115 "Revenue fram coatraet with customers™

A. Disaggregation of Revenue
Se1 oot below iis the disaggregation of the Compuny's revenue from contracts with enstomers imo opersting segment end type of product or services:
{Rs. In crore)
Type of Product or Services For the year eaded March 31, 2020
Revente 29 per lad AS 115 Method for meusuring performante | Qther Revepue | Toind as per
obllgation Statement of
Profit nnd Loss
Dosmestle Foreign Tota) Toput Method Qetpat Method {Begment
Reporting
Railwa; - - - = = = -
| Highwsy 70.41 - T041 70.41 - - 7043
Elecirical E 5 S = B &) E
Building =) = E = o = =
Others - = = = = = =
Total 0.41 - T0.41 7041 = = 70.41
Ol of the total revenne recogaised under Ind AS 115 durfog the year, Rs 25.20 crore is recogntsed over a period of fime and Rs. 45.84 crore recopuised point in ime.
in croTe]
Type of Product or Services For tie year ended March 31, 2019
Revenae 25 per Iod AS 115 Methiod for measuring performance Other Revenue Tolal 25 per
obligation Statemest of
Proflt and 1oss
Desmestlc Foreign Total Tnput Method Dutpot Mcthod ISegment
Reporting
35607 5607 35607 356.07
38607 = 356.87 356.07 . - 35607

Qat of the total revenne recogaised under Tnd AS 115 durlng the year, Ra 35133 erove is vecognlsed over 4 period of ime and Bi.d.74 crore recognised polnt In time.

B. The Company has spplied modified retrospestive apgroach for tbe applicatios ofIod AS 115 "Revenue from contracis With custerners™ and the offect i Nil oo rotained earnings as at April 1, 2018,

C. Contract balances

{Ra in crove)
Particnlars Asmy Asar
31t March, 2020 | 30t Murch, 2013 _|
Trade Receivables (Note 7.1) 566 15
Contract Assets (Nots 5.1 and 7.4) 1.84 1.84
Contract Liabilitics d =

(i} (i) Trade recoivables are pon-interest bearing and the customes profile incindes Neticnn! Highway Awhority of India { NHAT) and Foll Colieeticn Agency. The Company's average projee! executicn tyvle is arsund 24 10
36 months. General payment tenms inctude p for wtility shifiing ref and change in vope of work mutually egreed upon ifany, with a credit period ranging from 50 to 180 deys or when the work is
certified Payments alse insludes Toll meeipts for wse of Toll oollzsted by the Toll Collection Ageney for the Company. Project exeruted by the Company is under BOT ( buile operade transfer) model and the payments arz
oo aecoul of Toll Collection und additieral warks by NHAL if'any.

{[i} Controct Assels are recognised over the period in which services to the Company's right 4 jderstion in exet for goods or services transfared to the customer. [t includes bafances due
from esiomers under constructics conirams that arise when tha Company rectives payments from cusiomers o5 per ferms of the contracts however the feventie is focognised over the pariod under input method. Any

amum! previously recogniset as & contract ssset is Teclassified 1o trade on of the condition attached 2, fishure service which is neczssary to ashieve the Fling milestone,
Movement In contract balances during the year
{Rs, in £rove)

Particulery Asut Asat

315t March, 2020 | 3ist March. 2019
Contract esset st the Beginning of the vear 1.84 L84
Contract esset at the end of the year 1.84 1.84
Ned increaseldecreass - -

For the year 201920, thore bas been net reduction by Rs NIL a6 compared to last year. The amounis reiate 1o Maney withheld for Rs .88 Lakhs and Rs 0.96 Lakhs o avcount of Relention mency, which i expected fo
be received sfter final eompletion of the project. Furdhier, the company bas nol recognized these mounds, at its Faie Valae in acsordance with INIY AS 109, a5 per the momagement the impact of fair value is marginal and
slso nop Teoogoition st fair valoe is consistent with Company’s group acecunting policies and consistent with previous years.

(Ra. In crore)
Particalary Asat Asst
31st March, 2020 | Jist 019
Confract lisbilities ot the bezinning of the year - -
Contract lisbifitics at the end of the year - -
Net inerease/decrease = -
0. Set ond belfow s the amount of revente recognlsed from;
(Rs. in crove)
Purticalars Axnt st
31st BTarck. 2020 | 31st March, 2012
Amount included in comtract Habilifies i the beginning of the D 0
Perfoxmanee obligation satisfied in préviows years - -

E. Cost to obisin the rontract
Armount recogmised as asset as at 3151 Merch, 2020 is Rs. Nil (As el 3151 Merch, 2019: Rs, Nil)
Amount of amortisstion recognised in the Letemnent of profit and less duting the year is Rs. Nil (FY 2018-19: Rs. Nil)

F. Performance obligatien

Information about the Compeny’s performance obligetions are symmarised below:
The trensaction price ailocated, o the Eni it isficd or partially wnsatisfied) os ot 3§ March are, as follows:

{Rs, in crore)

Within one year

More than one year to 2 years
More than 2 years

Totst

Asat

Asat

31t Murch, 2020 31st March, 2019
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Note :- 35

IRCON FB TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes io Finaacial Statements for the year ended March 3%, 2020

Leases

a) Company 85 8 Lessee

The Company a5 a lessee has entered into two lease contracts, for office space and guest house, Before the adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company
classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an operating [ease, Thesc leases are in nature of short term
leases and are operating leases.

Lease Linbitities
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year:

(Rs. In crore)

As at 315t March, 2020

Balance at April 1, 2019 -
Addition 1
Accredition of interest -
Payments =
Balance at March 31, 2024 -
Current -
Non-current -

The maturity analysis of the lease ligbility is included in Note - 31 Financial risk management objectives ang pelicies under maturities of financial
liabilities,

Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

(Rs, in erore)
For the year
ended 315t March
2020
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets -
Interest expense on lease liabilities -
Expense relating to short-lerm leases (Refer Note 18 ) 0.08
6,08

b) Company as a Lessor

At present, Company has not given any item on lease.
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IRCON FB TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statemenis for the year ended Mareh 31, 2029

Note:- 36  Information in respect of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as required by Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)

(Rs. in crore}
8,No. [Particulars AS at 315t March, |As st 31st March,
2020 2012

—

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining umpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year:

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

Interest due on above

L)

Ipeyment made to the lier beyond the

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the
ppuinted day during each accounting year

PR

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the

appointed day during the year) but without adding the taterest specified under the MEMED Act 2006

b

The smount of interest accrued and remaining wnpaid at the end of each accounting year

wn

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section
23 of the MEMED Act 2006
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to Finaneial Statesnents for the year ended Mareh 31, 2020

'Note== 37

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses {CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with puidelines issued by Deparment of Public Enterprises, GO, the Company is required to spend, in every financial
yenr, at least two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years in accerdance with its CSR Policy. The
details of CSR. expenses for the year are as under-

g}

b)

)

d}

Amount reguired o be spent on CSR Activities

{Rs. in crore)
Particulars For the year ended |For the year ended

31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Gross amount required to be spem by the Company during the year - =
Amount spent on CSR Activities

(Rs. in crorg)
Particulsrs For the year ended 31si March 2020 For the year ended 31st March 2819

[Paid in Cash Yet to be Paid Total Paid in Cash Yet to be Paid Tatal

On Construction/acquisition of asset® - 0.12 0.12
On purposes other than above - 0.01 0.01
Total - - - 0,13 - 0.13

*Assets purchased and handed over 1o respective organisalion and are not being held by the Company. The amouni expended in 2018-19 is the carried forward amount

of previous years, utilised in 2018-19.

Balance amount {o be spent on CSR Activities
(Rs. in crore)
Particolars For the year ended [For the year ended
313t March 2020 315t March 2019
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year (as per (a) above) - -
Amount spent by the Company during the year (as per (b) above) - 0.13
Bal: to be incurred by the pany . =
Brezk-up of the CSR expenses under major hesds is 23 under:-
(Rs. in crore)
Particulars For the year ended |For the year ended
3ist Mareh 2020 31st March 2019
Contribution to Prime Minister CARES Fund for fighting against COVID-19 - -
Eradicating hunger, poverty & malnutrition, promoting preventive healthcare & sanitation & making available safe drinking - -
'water
Promoting Education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills especially among children, - -
Ensuring environmental sustainability - -
Sports o o
Others (including Cther Admin Cost) - 0.13
- 0.13

'Note:- 38 Other disclosures

g) Some of the balances shown under debiors, advances and creditors are subjest to confirmation / recongiliation/ adjustment, if any. The Company has been sending letters

b)

<)

for confirmation to patties. However, the does not expect any material dispute w.r.t. the recoverabitity/payment of the same.

In the opinion of the menagement, the value of current assets, loans and advances on realization in the ordinary course of business, will not be less thas the value at

which these are stated in the balance sheet.

Company has received provisional Commercial Operation Date (COD) on 15th Feb 2012 for work awarded by NHAT for widening and strengthening of the existing
Bikaner — Phalodi Section to 4 lane from Km. 4.200 to Ko 55.250 and 2 Lane with Paved shoulder from Km. 55.250 to Km. 163,50 of NH 13 in the state of Rajasthan

on DBFOT (Design, Built, Finance, and Operate & Transier) basis,

Company bas corapleted physical progress as per certified Independent Engineer’s assessment for the month of Feb 19 at 95.93%. Based on the physical progress
achicved at that time and the approved estimated costs at that time an amount of Rs $20.75 crores had been transferred to Intangible Asset- Toll Road ( refer note 4). In
the current financial year the total completion upto 3.3.2020 achieved was upto 99.65% and final completion of 100% was not achicved further
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d)  As per Induan Accounting Scandwd (lnd AS) 115 Amumc.mMummemmw-MWﬁmNﬂannﬂlem
vadue where there 13 a ressonable assurance thas the grant - Cash suppont sl be vectived and the company wall comply with ali atiached conditions The Ascounting
irzatmeni of dve same has been made a3 per the mentioned Ind AS 155

Grant recognized by the company s per service concession

Bgreement 13 Rs. 327 Cnslpreviows yew Rs. 313 B5Crs) based on the Onigmal project cost snd ongonal
finsncial package The same has been contidered a3 due

rmmmmwm-mwmmdmww
Out ol totad amourd due, osmpany has received Rs. 260.05 crore uptil 335 March 2020

Balance amount of Rs. 47.82 Crore{lncluding Rs 88 Laca on aceoun! of Money
Withheld) has been received by the COmpany in the finsncind year 202021 before the

sagming, of these firancials

) Aspa Selmtﬁoslmuim Agreement entered with NHAL Cotrpany need o undertake the work of shifting of utility including electric lines, water pipes and Ledephons
eables, of wuch wility cause » matesial adverse effect on the constnaction, operation and mainienaroe of the propecl. The roxt of shifling of such utility shall he bome by
the Authority (NHAT) o by the enlity owing the wility

has subcontracted the eatire work of Undity Shifting 1o IRCON betemuinna) Limitod on back o back bexis afler approval from NHAL Upto 313t March 2020,
IRCON Iniesnational Limiled has billod an smount of Rs 31.46 crotes 1o the company. has filed claims {0 NHAT from time 10 lime and the same i wader
teconcrlisiion An emount of Re. 28,75 Cry {Inck TDS) has been received from NHA? i) JTHMarch 2020 against these claims. Batwice wmount of Ks, 271 Crs i3
idered ns oiher rece) bles under other financial nuseis- cument K is under soconciliation with the NHAL and i yed fo ba reccive from / confirmed by NEAL

An amount of VAT on works contrict receivable for Rs §7.47 Lakhs is sppeasing in other cument sssets besng the VAT deducted by NHA! in the peavieus VAT regime
on uility shifiing. Efforis are being made for recovery of the same from the Clisnt / Tax Depuriment, Recovery of amownt due from NHAL on seooust of Uity shifting
is under reconciliation

Companry his reecived apprevad from NHAK for *Changs of Scope® for Re 23.8% Crore . As per the Arlicle 16.3.2 of ihe Servies Concesuon Agreemen, 0. 23% of the
total project cost shall b bome by IPBTL snd the balance shall be reimbursed by the NHAZ Company has raised invoice 1o NELAJ for work doae under Change of
Scope-of Rs 13.98 Crore up Jo 31/03/2020. Amount of Ra. 13.98 Crovels considered a5 trado seceivable out of which Rs 4.95 crosa ressived and balsnce of Rs 904
ix under reconciliation with the INHAI s is yet to be received from / confismed by NHAL

B} The duration snd impact of the COVID-19 pandemue remuns untlear &8 present 83 on reporting data Hence, it is not possible to relisbly estimate the dwrstion snd
severily of these consequences, as well as their impact on tha financial position and results of tha Company for futwre penods Howzver, the company is prolected by the
clauses 29.6 of the Concession Agseement to lurn such fost under farce majeare event in the form of Tevenue Joss compenzation by way of extension of the
concension period The impact of the tockdown disruption COVID-19 sundemic witl have to be assessed from time (o time and communicaled o3 we progress during the

current financia! year, A lot depends on the success of the various pandemic containment efforts being undertaben by the Siate and Centeal Governments and Healih
suthoritiea. I is therefore premature to forecast Hie future impact with credibility it this stage

Cerain prior periods amounts have been reclassified for contistenicy with the current period presentations, These reclassificationy have no effect on the reposted resutts
of operations. Also, previous year figenes are shown under bracke? () to differentiate from curvent year figares

i) Theinteres rate of Loan iy under rgview and inloves! payable for the fosn has been defemed The Company has provided for Lnterest on Loan for Ra 19.97 Crores uplo
30.9.2019 under the head "Interest on Loan®, Intevest amourt for the period after this date has not been provided since the same is not considered due wnd paysble

For and on behalf of Ircon PB Tollway Limited ‘ l\
' . g~y
i.hﬂuml)

RSV (Bhuvaneshwari Krishnan)
sted ‘Acoouw {Chairman) Direcdor Direcior
RN 0046161 ? Din No. 07598926 Din No.07752915 DinNo 07436148
e ol Privp (At Kumar) jur Meﬁ??n)i An Kaushik
1 ALR" DX v
U 2 008 368 OEE 3 {Chiel Executive Officer) {Chief Financial Officer) { Company )
Place . New Delhi
Dale :
: 2\’\}8,'2»07/@
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020.

The preparation of financial statements of IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED for the period
ended 31% March 2020 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the company. The Statutory Auditor
appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act is
responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 24.06.2020.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct the
supplementary audit of the financial statements of IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED for the period
ended 31% March 2020 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(K.S. Ramuwalia)
Place: New Delhi Principal Director of Audit
Dated: 28.08.2020 Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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